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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of
Sinoref Holdings Limited (“Sinoref” or the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present its
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2014.

In 2014, the domestic economic growth remains slow, the
iron and steel industry is still plagued by overcapacity and
oversupply in the market, and steel prices continues to fall,
steel enterprises face significant business challenges, while
steel flow control products industry has also been dragged
down. Affected by the difficult business environment and the
continued weak market conditions, the Group recorded a
loss of RMB173.7 million in the year. However, the Group will
continue to strive through advanced technology research and
development to provide quality products to our customers, so
as to tide through the difficulties with the iron and steel industry
and strive to maintain its market position.

There has been a conscious focus by the leadership in China
on improving the quality and sustainability of the country’s
economic growth model, which has had an impact on China’s
steel sector. It is believed that this structural shift could
influence demand-supply dynamics in the regions, especially
import susceptible geographies such as Europe and USA, and
lead to moderation of raw material prices and pricing dynamics
across regions.

According to the China’s Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology, high value-added steel took up a larger proportion
of China’s overall steel exports in 2014. And the figures from
China’s National Bureau of Statistics showed that China
exported almost 94 million tonnes of steel products in 2014,
representing a rise of 50.5% over the figure in 2013.
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Since 2010, the Group has been devoted to tapping the
overseas market to seize the immense opportunities outside
China; and our high-quality products have earned the
appreciation of leading steel manufacturers in Europe, Russia
and Korea. We are confident that the Group will further enhance
its leading position in the domestic market, and raise the brand
recognition in the international market as well.

Understanding the importance of technology advancement
and to maintain our competitive edge in the industry, we have
always devoted great efforts to research and development,
so as to develop steel flow control products with advanced,
internally developed technology. In 2014, we have obtained
5 new registered patents, increasing our total number of
registered patents to 22.

In a move to tackle overcapacity and air pollution, the Chinese
government has taken the toughest measures ever to order
steel mills to curb production, while sharp falls in steel prices
and high inventories have also forced some steel mills to rein in
production. Moreover, the long-standing overcapacity, slower
growth in demand and tighter credit have forced many Chinese
steel mills to produce at a loss or at low profitability. To improve
the economic conditions, the Chinese government has launched
“Mini Stimulus” policies and encourages social investment in
infrastructure projects, which are expected to revitalize the iron
and steel industry and boost the demand for advanced steel
flow control products.

Recently, the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology
has forecasted the crude steel capacity in China will grow
in 2015, despite the difficult market conditions as new steel
projects are coming onstream. The Group believes that a healthy
operating environment for the steel industry will be achieved in
a long run, and Sinoref will maintain the competitiveness of its
high quality products and leverage the potential opportunities
presented by those incentive policies.

Chairman’s Statement

ETEHRES

A=T-THE AKE-EENHESE
ST AR IR BRSO BEAR © B

MEHERSE TEN  REHNEER
FMmHRR - RPIREAEEE—F

EEEBAM SR -
R IGH) mhER AT E o

Blisr g

THREIGCERMOEZEY - URARIFR
MEXANHREFED RN —ESEER
TEE - DASRSEEY B B 28 Bl 3 e s 7k 2
MEmM ' RZE—NF - RS EUSSE

LM &R - <RI ZFERE E
2218 °
REFRERBRNRZRSAERE - PE

BT B BRER % 18 BR AR 6 1 38 0 S R £ 2 -

i #+1 B 18 =B T AT SN IF < Bl
BIEHIEE o b - RAARBERL BRI
FE - FBRIERBENAR BB/ EERRS
Y HEKREMBESEERRERA -
REZFIRN P BB HE o R R AR
R BT EREEMRERE - AEIR
BT 3 - (R = i KPR EE R Y

B e

BEMHSMATRR - BREEF M IEE
BIRIRE - TERESIELHANERTE
ARBEREMEEN T —AFEEEM
B - AKBEREMEATERE/ERR
BOLLRE  MEMBSERFEEER
BEFE N TN E LS B IEBRRER
B ETERE

Annual Report 2014
TE-NEFR



Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

In addition to the organic growth, we have reviewed from time
to time potential business opportunities and investment, so as
to diversify its business and explore new revenue stream. In
November 2014, the Group has entered into a share transfer
agreement with an individual third party pursuant to which the
Group conditionally agreed to acquire 90% of the issued share
capital of a company, which is principally engaged in the money
lending business. We believe that this acquisition will bring in
additional growth drivers to the Group with growth potential and
boost our overall performance in the future.

Moving forward, we believe the economic conditions will
improve, and anticipate that the industry will present a better
performance in 2015, whereas we will exercise due caution
to embrace the challenges. Riding on our competitive edge
in the steel flow control industry and our strategy to diversify
toward more profitable business, we believe Sinoref will regain
its strength in the foreseeable future and start to reward its
shareholders with outstanding results.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere
appreciation to our staff for their steadfast dedication amidst
the adverse and challenging environment, as well as to our
shareholders and business partners for their invaluable support
and trust over the years.

Xu Yejun
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MARKET REVIEW

In 2014, the global economy was in its mild recovery from the
turbulent issues of debt crises in the United States of America,
European countries and the unrest in the Arab world. The
aftermath of all these political and economic crises continued
to affect the world economy, leading to a decline in demand for
the commodities-based products, a fragile commodities market,
sluggish commodity selling prices and volatile financial market.
The Chinese economy remained on the path of moderation with
the gross domestic product reported at a growth rate at about
7.4%. The growth slowdown in the domestic economy, coupled
with overcapacity but inadequate demand, excess inventory,
inflation of iron ore prices, and continuing decline in steel price
have put enormous pressure on the production and operations
of steel manufacturers. As a result, a certain amount of large
steel manufacturers were still suffering losses. Even worse,
many small industry players were forced to be closed down due
to a break in the capital chain.

According to calculations published by the China Iron and Steel
Association (CISA), apparent crude steel demand in China
fell 3.4 % year on year to approximately 738.3 million tonnes
in 2014; and the total production rose 0.9 % to 822.7 million
tonnes over the year. The steel output of China in 2014 grew at
the slowest rate since 1981. The low growth rate in the output
suggests that China’s authorities have had some success in
efforts to lower production and close polluting plants.

The issued figures by the CISA showed that the average daily
crude steel production of China’s major steelmakers was
approximately 1.7 million tonnes between 21-31 December
2014, down 3.6% from the previous 10 days (11-20 December).
The CISA had urged producers to continue slashing excess
capacity and improving efficiency as steel output in China could
be approaching its peak.

According to the World Steel Association, the world crude steel
production reached approximately 1,662 million tonnes for the
year 2014, up by 1.2% compared to 2013; whilst China’s share
of world crude steel production decreased from 49.7% in 2013
10 49.5% in 2014.

Since the steel flow control product business is a steel-related
industry, the business of the Company was adversely affected
by the weakness of steel prices and steel production in 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREFNWED

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
advanced steel flow control products including subentry nozzle,
stopper, tundish nozzle and ladle shroud. The production
and operation of steel manufacturers were under tremendous
pressure and challenges amidst the deteriorating global market
and the fluctuating iron ore prices; that in turn lowered the
average selling price of the products and profitability of the
Group. Moreover, while the Group incurred higher research and
development costs, selling and distribution costs also increased
due to higher sales volume. The business and financial
performances of the Group for 2014 were therefore negatively
affected. Nevertheless, the Group strived to maintain its leading
positions in the market for the period under review by solidifying
the foothold of its existing steel flow control products business,
and at the same time developing new businesses and adopted
a diversification strategy to explore opportunities for new
sources of income.

Consolidation in Customer Base

Building on its strong reputation in the industry and leading
technologies in the design and manufacturing of advanced steel
flow control products, the Group has further consolidated its
customer base in the PRC market. During the year ended 31
December 2014, the Group has secured another two strategic
important new customers, Shanxi Xinxing Kiln & Furnace
Group Co. Ltd. (ILFEFEVEZSEHBR A A]) and Zhangjiagang
Rongsheng Steel-Making Co., Ltd. GREK B L E KM AR A
Al). Meanwhile, the Group continued to be the key supplier of
the top 10 steel manufacturers in the PRC, including Baosteel
Group, Shougang Group, Hebei Group and Wuhan Steel. Going
forward, we will continue to explore business opportunities with
domestic steel manufacturers to drive further business growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Expanded Overseas Market

During the year under review, the global economy has seen
a moderate recovery which has created more international
business opportunities. As a result, the management
understands the importance of diversifying its customer base
and has devoted substantial efforts to further expand the
overseas market. The Group has built up the reputation of
the brand “Sinoref” among the steel industry over the years
and has successfully gained a good reputation of many of the
world’s most renowned steel manufacturers, including: the
world’s largest steel and mining company, ArcelorMittal; and
the world’s largest manufacturer, processer and distributor of
special long steel products, Carboref GmbH; and during the
year under review, the Group recorded encouraging results in
expanding into overseas markets, with overseas revenue rising
from approximately RMB25.9 million in 2013 to approximately
RMB36.7 million in 2014. We will strive to enhance our global
brand awareness with the view to strengthen the Group’s
leading position in the industry.

Enhanced Research and Development

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has
attained five new utility patents. This brings the Group’s total
to 22 registered patents as at the end of the year. The strong
research and development capability is a core competitive edge
of Sinoref that has helped the Group become China’s second
largest advanced steel flow control product manufacturer just a
few years after its founding.

Besides further developing its steel flow control products
business, the Group has also been seeking potential
opportunities in steel-related as well as non-steel related
businesses. During the year under review, the Group significantly
boosted its investment in research and development to further
diversify its business. For the year ended 31 December 2014,
Sinoref’s research and development team has 33 professionals,
and the expenses on research and development amounted to
approximately RMB32.7 million, representing approximately

13.6% of the Group’s total revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWED

As a result, we have adopted a number of leading self-
developed technologies which enable the Group to enjoy
a preferential tax rate as a Chinese High-tech Enterprise,
supporting future earnings to record new heights.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s revenue
was approximately RMB240.9 million (2013: RMB186.4 million).
The increase in revenue was mainly due to (i) our expansion
in overseas market; and (i) the significant drop in our average
selling price to boost our sales. Total sales volume increased
by approximately 50.3% to approximately 13,403 tonnes from
8,917 tonnes for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales mainly comprised costs of raw
materials, labour, depreciation and other direct costs of
sales. During the year, the Group’s cost of sales increased
by approximately 64.9% from RMB161.9 million in 2013 to
approximately to RMB267.0 million in 2014. The significant
increase was mainly attributable to the increase in the sale
volume during the year.

Gross (Loss) Profit

Due to the sluggish market demand in the steel industry, the
Group experienced a gross loss of approximately RMB26.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2014. For the year
ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded a gross profit
of approximately RMB24.5 million with approximately 13.2%
gross profit margin. The gross loss was mainly resulted from the
significant cut down on our average products price in order to
capture the market in the current competitive environment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Impairment Loss Recognised in Respect of Property, Plant
and Equipment

Due to the weakening of steel market in China of continuing
decline in steel demand and price, the recoverability of the
relevant carrying amounts of the Group’s plant and equipment
exceeded their recoverable amounts. An impairment loss of
approximately RMB24.3 million has been recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB29.1 million).

Impairment Loss Recognised in Respect of Trade
Receivables

As the repayment ability of Chinese steel enterprises
deteriorates, an impairment loss for trade receivables has been
recognised. For the year ended 31 December 2014, impairment
loss for trade receivables amounted to approximately RMB30.6
million (2018: nil).

Selling and Distribution Costs

The Group’s selling and distribution costs comprised sales
commissions, sales staff costs and transportation costs. During
the year under review, its selling and distribution costs increased
to approximately RMB27.5 million, representing an increase of
approximately 33.4% from approximately RMB20.6 million for
the previous year. The increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in sales volume.

Administrative Expenses and Other Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses and other expenses
increased by approximately 121.9% from approximately
RMB32.8 million for year ended 31 December 2013 to
approximately RMB72.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2014. The significant increase was mainly attributable to the
increase of research and development expenses, amounting to
approximately RMB32.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2014. The Group has devoted more resources to research and
development for creating more new products to meet with its
customers’ needs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREFNWED

Finance Cost

The Group’s finance costs were approximately RMB1.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: nil). The interest
rate for bank loan was at a fixed interest rate of 6.9% per
annum.

Taxation

One of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries successfully obtained the
Chinese High-tech Enterprise Certification (F1 Bl & # i > %2
7). Consequently, this PRC subsidiary was entitled to the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) rate of 15% until 2014. The EIT
rate for another PRC subsidiary of the Company is 25%.

Loss and Total Comprehensive Expense for the Year

As a result of the challenging conditions, the Group’s loss and
total comprehensive expense for the year was approximately
RMB173.7 million, compared to approximately RMB56.8 million
for the previous year. The loss was mainly due to a combination
of factors, which include (i) the significant drop of our average
product price; (ii) impairment loss in respect of property,
plant and equipment; and (i) impairment loss in respect of
trade receivables. The Group’s loss per share increased from
RMB4.73 cents for the year ended 31 December 2013 to
RMB11.55 cents loss per share in 2014.

Final Dividends

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s net cash
used in operating activities was approximately RMB238.1 million
(2013: net cash used in operating activities RMB52.1 million)
and the Group’s bank balances and cash was approximately
RMB102.7 million (2013: RMB312.3 million).

Total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2014 was
approximately RMB526.5 million (2013: RMB563.3 million). The
Group has an outstanding bank loan of approximately RMB20.0
million as at 31 December 2014 (2013: nil).

Gearing ratio is calculated based on total debt at the end of the
year divided by total assets at the end of the year multiplied by
100%. As at 31 December 2014, the gearing ratio of the Group
was 3.8% (2013: nil).

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries and
Associated Companies

The acquisition of Accurate Trade International Limited was
completed on 16 April 2014 by the Company as detailed in
note 33. Besides, the Company has entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement for the acquisition of Time Credit
Limited on 3 November 2014 as detailed in note 18.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, except for
investments in its subsidiaries, the Company did not hold any
significant investment in equity interest in any other company.

The Group has always been investing in research and
development activities. Such expenditure amounted to about
RMB32.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWED

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2014, the Group pledged certain of its
buildings and leasehold land with aggregate net carrying value
of approximately RMB32,300,000 (2013: nil) as collaterals for
the bank loan granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had not provided any form
of guarantee for any company outside the Group. The Group
is not involved in any current material legal proceedings, nor
is our Group aware of any pending or potential material legal
proceedings involving the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND STAFF REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 371 staff members
employed in mainland China and Hong Kong (2013: 287). Total
staff costs for the year were approximately RMB38.1 million
(2013: RMB31.2 million). During the year, the Group continued
to reinforce the training to its staff by providing training and
study opportunities for management staff and professional
technicians. In addition, the Group has provided a timely update
to all staff about the latest government policies of the industry
to continuously enhance the professional standard and quality
of the staff. Meanwhile, the Group has provided competitive
remuneration for staff which encourages them to commit
themselves and serve customers wholeheartedly.

PROSPECTS

In the face of the continuous sluggish performance of the steel
industry, the PRC government has issued a directive “Guiding
Opinions of the State Council on Resolving Serious Production
Overcapacity Conflicts” € 7% . B8 1A 1k 7 2= RE Bk = 1B I o7 & /Y
53 & R.) in October 2013, which aims to eliminate 80 million
tonnes of steel production capacity by 2017. The government
will monitor the results and implement an appraisal system,
thereby encouraging local governments to take immediate
action. The Group will closely monitor the impact of the changes
in industry-wide policies, and apply its leading technologies to
meet evolving production requirements of steel manufacturers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of advanced steel flow control products and the manufacture
and sale of paper converting equipment and other relating
equipment. Despite the sluggish performance of the steel
industry in 2014, the management is cautiously optimistic in
its outlook in 2015, given the improving economic conditions
and supportive government policies. We believe that the PRC
government will devote more attention to meet its capacity
reduction target by accelerating the closure of obsolete capacity
and restructuring within the steel industry, which will create a
healthier and supply-demand balanced environment.

While the steel industry has been delivering disappointing
performances and is still facing uncertainties, in addition to
the business of manufacturing steel flow control products, we
are also evaluating other potential business opportunities, with
the aim to enhance our profitability. Both the up- and down-
stream business segments in the steel industry will be our
targets, and the Group would also take an open attitude to any
complementary business with bright market prospects.

On 3 November 2014, the Group has entered into a share
transfer agreement with an individual third party, pursuant
to which the Group conditionally agreed to acquire 90% of
the issued share capital in Time Credit Limited, a company
principally engaged in the money lending business. The
acquisition is expected to provide the Group an excellent
opportunity to engage in a new line of business with growth
potential, broaden its source of income and revenue base.

In the long run, the Group’s strategy will include evaluating
suitable investments that present development opportunities,
which provide additional stable income streams that lead to
sustainable probability.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report
in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December
2014.

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and endeavours in following the code
provisions (“Code Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) and Corporate Governance
Report, contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules (“Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The Board considers
such commitment is essential for the growth of the Group and
for maximising the interest of the shareholders (“Shareholders”)
of the Company. The Company regularly reviews its corporate
governance practices to ensure that the latest development in
corporate governance can be followed and observed.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the financial year under review, the Company had
complied with all the Code Provisions for the period from 1
January 2014 to 31 December 2014, except for the deviations
from Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which are explained
below.

According to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Xu Yejun, in addition to his duties as the chairman of the
Company, is also responsible for the strategic planning and
overseeing all aspects of the Group’s operations as the chief
executive officer of the Company. This constitutes a deviation
from Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. Mr. Xu Yejun as
one of the founders of the Group has extensive experience and
knowledge in the core business of the Group and his duties for
overseeing the Group’s operations is clearly beneficial to the
Group. The Board considers that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Group.

With effect from 2 January 2015, Mr. Xu Yejun resigned from
chief executive officer of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

With effect from 2 January 2015, Mr. Lu Yongchao was
appointed as chief executive officer of the Group.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted on 7 June 2010 its securities dealing
code (“Code”) regarding the dealings of securities of the
Company by the Directors and senior management of the
Group, on terms no less exacting than the required standard
under the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

The Company, having made specific enquiry of all Directors
and senior management of the Group, all the Directors and
senior management of the Group have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Code and Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules regarding securities
transactions by Directors and senior management of the Group
throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s overall strategic
policies. The management is delegated with the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the management of the Group.

The Board is currently composed of two executive Directors
namely Mr. Xu Yejun as the chairman and Mr. Sin Kwok Wai
Ronald; two non-executive Directors, Mr. Chow Chi Wa and Ms.
Yip Sum Yu; and three independent non-executive Directors
namely Mr. Yao Enshu, Mr. Tong Yiu On and Mr. Li Yik Sang.
The biographical details of the Directors are set out under
“Directors and senior management” on pages 30 to 36 of this
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2014.
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Corporate Governance Report
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Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, Mr. Sin
Kwok Wai Ronald (appointed as an executive Director on 10
October 2014), Ms. Yip Sum Yu (appointed as a non-executive
Director on 10 November 2014), Mr. Tong Yiu On (appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 10 October
2014) and Mr. Li Yik Sang (appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 10 October 2014) shall retire at the annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer
himself/herself for re-election.

The non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific term
of three years.

The Board meets regularly to review and determine the
corporate strategies and overall strategic policies. Each of the
members of the Board has full access to relevant information
at the meetings. During the financial year ended 31 December
2014, the Board has convened four regular meetings at which,
among other things, the following activities were conducted at
such regular meetings:

(1) approved the interim results and interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2014;

(2) approved the annual results and annual report for the

financial year ended 31 December 2013 and matters to be
considered at the annual general meeting of the Company;

(3) reviewed and approved corporate strategies of the Group
for the financial year ending 31 December 2015; and

(4) reviewed the performance and financial position of the
Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is also responsible for determining the Company’s
corporate governance policies and performing corporate
governance duties set out under the CG Code. Its corporate
governance duties include, among others, (i) to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (ii) to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (iii) to review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal or regulatory
requirements; (iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and (v) to review the Company’s disclosure in its
corporate governance report.

Apart from the regular board meetings, the Board met on other
occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter
was required.

Details of the Directors’ attendance records at the board
meetings and general meeting during the financial year ended

31 December 2014 are as follows:

Board General

Directors Meetings Meeting
Meetings attended/held

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Yejun (Chairman) 16/17 1/2
Mr. Zhao Ping' 12/17 2/2
Mr. Ho Yuk Hay? 18/17 2/2
Mr. Sin Kwok Wai Ronald?® 3/3 ==
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Chi Wa 15/17 2/2
Ms. Yip Sum Yu* —/— ==
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Yao Enshu 12/17 1/2
Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve® 13/17 2/2
Mr. Wong Kwong Chi® 13/17 2/2
Mr. Tong Yiu On® 3/3 =/=
Mr. Li Yik Sang® 3/3 /=

Resigned on 22 October 2014
Resigned on 28 October 2014
Appointed on 10 October 2014
Appointed on 10 November 2014
Resigned on 10 October 2014
Appointed on 10 October 2014
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Whilst the Board as a whole is to determine the corporate
strategies and overall strategy policies, the executive Directors
and senior management of the Company, as delegated by
the Board, are responsible for implementing the determined
strategies and policies and the day-to-day management of the
Group’s business.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors and
senior management” of this annual report, there is no other
relationship (whether financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships) among the members of the Board.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.18 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed
and relevant. The Company shall be responsible for arranging
suitable training for all Directors at the Company’s expense.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors
participated in the following trainings:
Directors Type of training
Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Yejun (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Ping'

Mr. Ho Yuk Hay?
Mr. Sin Kwok Wai Ronald?®

> >
W W W W
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Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chow Chi Wa A B
Ms. Yip Sum Yu* A B

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Yao Enshu B
Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve® A, B
Mr. Wong Kwong Chi® A B
Mr. Tong Yiu On® A B
Mr. Li Yik Sang® A B

! Resigned on 22 October 2014

2 Resigned on 28 October 2014

S Appointed on 10 October 2014

& Appointed on 10 November 2014
g Resigned on 10 October 2014

@ Appointed on 10 October 2014

A:  attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

B: reading newspapers, journals, Company newsletters and
updates relating to the economy, general business, steel
industry or Directors’ duties and responsibilities, etc.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year under review, the Board adopted a board
diversity policy setting out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. The Company considered diversity of Board
members can be achieved through consideration of a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”) is currently consisted of four members, comprising
one executive Director, namely Mr. Xu Yejun (chairman) and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yao
Enshu, Mr. Tong Yiu On and Mr. Li Yik Sang. It was established
by the Board with effect from 27 March 2012 and its duties
are clearly defined in its terms of reference which have been
prepared and adopted according to the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year
under review and conducted the following activities:

(1) reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board;
and

(2) reviewed the retirement of Directors by rotation and the
re-appointment of the retiring Directors at the 2014 annual
general meeting of the Company.

Details of attendance of each member of the Nomination
Committee during the financial year ended 31 December 2014
are as follows:

Attendance
Executive Director
Mr. Xu Yejun 3/3
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yao Enshu (Chairman) 3/3
Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve 2/3
(Resigned on 10 October 2014)
Mr. Wong Kwong Chi 2/3
(Resigned on 10 October 2014)
Mr. Tong Yiu On 1/3
(Appointed on 10 October 2014)
Mr. Li Yik Sang 1/3

(Appointed on 10 October 2014)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) currently comprises four members, including
three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yao Enshu
(chairman), Mr. Tong Yiu On and Mr. Li Yik Sang, and one
executive Director, Mr. Xu Yejun. The Remuneration Committee
was established by the Board on 7 June 2010 and its duties are
clearly defined in its written terms of reference which have been
prepared and adopted according to the Code Provisions.

The Remuneration Committee meets annually to review the
remuneration policies and packages for Directors and senior
management of the Company and to make recommendations
to the Board on such remuneration policies and packages. No
Director takes part in any discussions and decisions about his
own remuneration.

Details of attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee during the financial year ended 31 December 2014
are as follows:

Attendance
Executive Director
Mr. Xu Yejun 3/3
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yao Enshu (Chairman) 3/3
Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve 2/3
(Resigned on 10 October 2014)
Mr. Wong Kwong Chi 2/3
(Resigned on 10 October 2014)
Mr. Tong Yiu On 1/3
(Appointed on 10 October 2014)
Mr. Li Yik Sang 1/3

(Appointed on 10 October 2014)
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the
Remuneration Committee had convened two meetings with
full attendance by its members and conducted the following
activities:

(1) reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management of the Company; and

(2) reviewed the terms of the service contracts of all the
executive Directors by reference to their performance.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”)
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Tong Yiu On (chairman), Mr. Yao Enshu and Mr. Li
Yik Sang. The Audit Committee was established by the Board
on 7 June 2010 and its duties are clearly defined in its written
terms of reference which have been prepared and adopted
according to the Code Provisions.

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the
Board and the Company’s auditor in matters coming within
the scope of the Group’s audit. It also reviews the annual and
interim reports of the Company prior to their approval by the
Board, the effectiveness of the external and internal audit and of
internal controls and risk evaluation.

During the financial year under review, the Audit Committee has
convened two meetings and conducted the following activities:

(1)  reviewed the annual and interim reports of the Company;
(2) reviewed the report of internal audit department, internal
controls system and financial matters of the Group in

pursuance of the written terms of reference;

(8) reviewed the audit plans and findings of the external
auditor of the Company; and

(4) made recommendation to the Board on the appointment
of the external auditor.
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Details of attendance of each member of the Audit Committee
during the financial year ended 31 December 2014 are as
follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Tong Yiu On (Chairman) —/-
(Appointed on 10 October 2014)
Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve (Ex-Chairman) 2/2
(Resigned on 10 October 2014)
Mr. Yao Enshu 2/2
Mr. Wong Kwong Chi 2/2
(Resigned on 10 October 2014)
Mr. Li Yik San ==

(Appointed on 10 October 2014)

There was no disagreement between the Board’s and the Audit
Committee’s view on the selection, appointment of the external
auditor.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the nature
of the audit and non-audit services provided by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fees
paid/payable by the Company for such services are as follows:

Services rendered Fee paid/payable

HK$
Annual audit 780,000
Interim review 510,000
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2014, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting
policies and applied them consistently, and have prepared the
financial statements on a historical cost basis.

The statement of the external auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on page 55 to 56 of this annual
report of the Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control. The Board has entrusted the Audit
Committee with the responsibility to review the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control annually or at any time necessary.
The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management
functions, and takes into account the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes
and budget.

The Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

The following procedures for the Shareholders to convene
an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) of the Company
are prepared in accordance with Article 64 of the articles of
association of the Company:

(@) one or more Shareholders (“Requisitionist(s)”) holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings shall have the right,
by written notice, to require an EGM to be called by the
Directors for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.

(b)  Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company at the following:

Principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong

Address: 35th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Email: ir@sinoref.com.hk

Attention: the Board of Directors/Company Secretary
Registered office of the Company

Address: Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box

2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands

Attention: the Board of Directors/Company Secretary
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() The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition.

(d) If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit, the
Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Directors shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

Procedures for shareholders to direct enquiries to the Company

For matters in relation to the Board, the Shareholders can
contact the Company at the following:

Address: 35th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Email: ir@sinoref.com.hk

Tel: (852) 2530 0401

Fax: (852) 2530 0662

Attention: the Board of Directors/Company Secretary

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer
and registration, change of name or address, loss of share
certificates or dividend warrants, the registered Shareholders
can contact:

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Address: Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

a Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMERERATF

© BRENAGEENEZEE
MfE A NETT

5k I&

=113

d) MEBEAEEEABRKERE=
TN RRNBARKRRERAE - A
ERFAANREFRNBITEFARKRE
FRIAE  MEESS RKEBMAZ

ELERAEENABAREER
BARRIRZBAETEN -

BRREAXQRBDEEEANREF

NEREFENEE  BRRABATIR
BEARQA

ik FRBIFEEE185
IR 53518

B - ir@sinoref.com.hk

BiE© (852) 2530 0401

BE : (852) 2530 0662

WHEA: BEE / RFWE

RERRNECHEBEE  kHEFPE
L BREMEM  EAREIRE
B BRBRRAEATAABEARR :
EEROBFERIE
BEBSFELARDA

otk BEEERRNEBERI83FAMA

02218
S is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
B (852) 2980 1333
BE : (852) 2810 8185



Corporate Governance Report

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
a Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her proposal
(“Proposal”) with his/her detailed contact information at the
Company’s principal place of business at 35th Floor, Central
Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the board of directors of the
Company will be asked to include the Proposal in the agenda
for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the nature
of the Proposal as follows:

(@) Notice in writing of not less than 14 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days if the Proposal requires
approval by way of an ordinary resolution of the Company
in an EGM.

(b)  Notice in writing of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution of the Company in
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

(c) Notice in writing of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 20 clear business days if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution or an ordinary
resolution of the Company in an annual general meeting of
the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Yejun, aged 50, the co-founder of our Group, is the
chairman and our executive Director. Mr. Xu was appointed as
our executive Director on 4 February 2010. He was our Group’s
chief executive officer from its establishment until 2 January
2015 when he resigned from such position. He is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and management of our
Group. Mr. Xu has extensive experience in the advanced steel
flow control products industry, and has been engaging in such
business for over 25 years.

Mr. Xu studied in B8 KB H £ (Yixing Dapu Secondary
School*) from 1979 to 1981. Mr. Xu had been trained in J&B5 i
N ETZERE (Luoyang Institute of Refractories Research®) from
1984 to 1986. He had worked in B &1 &4 i AM B (Yixing
Magnena Refractory Materials Factory®) from 1981 to 1983 and
from 1987 to 1989, in Yixing Wellfire Nonmetal Materials Co.,
Ltd. BEHEEREFSBMBBRAAE from 1990 to 1995 and
in EEFRNEZEARAA (Yixing Zhongeun Kiln Products Co.,
Ltd.*) from 1996 till the establishment of Sinoref (Yixing) in 2005.
As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Xu was a director, the
chairman and the legal representative of ZEfi Bl B (B &)= A% fe &
BBRAF] (Sinoref International (Yixing) Co., Ltd.*), and a director
of Sinoref (Hong Kong) Limited and Sinoref (BVI) Limited. Each
of EHEER(E ) S AMAEBRAF (Sinoref International (Yixing)
Co., Ltd.*), Sinoref (Hong Kong) Limited and Sinoref (BVI)
Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company as at
the date of this annual report.

For his research item IKIE A ZE R ZE R EEE M AM
# ¥ E @R (The research and manufacture of new high
quality refractory accessory materials in glass melting furnace
regenerative chamber series®), Mr. Xu was awarded H BJ&E T £
R #F 8 (China Light Industry Technological Advancement
Award*) by FREIEX T4 € (China Light Industry Association®)
in 1991, E£/8 M & 8 K 1y # 2 88 (Science and Technology
Progress Awards of Shanghai) by /&Rl &3kl £ g TR E
B (Science and Technology Progress Awards Jury, Shanghai
Municipality) in 1995 and _E/8MEHEKREKEFEZ (Certificate
for Accomplisher of Technological Advancement in Shanghai*)
by EEMEIERMTZE &€ (Science and Technology Commission
of Shanghai Municipality) in 1996. Mr. Xu was also awarded
BT RIERIT# 25 42 (Science and Technology Progress Awards
of Shanghai) by L8 ME 2K T L EFEZLZEF (Science
and Technology Progress Awards Jury, Shanghai Municipality)
in 1996 in respect of BEFEAERETR FERIIEEE R
& (The research and manufacture of high quality specific
regenerative chambers checkers series accessory products?®).
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Sin Kwok Wai Ronald, aged 57, was appointed as
our executive Director on 10 October 2014. He received his
bachelor’s degree in accountancy from Queensland University of
Technology, Australia in 1994 and a master’s degree in business
administration from the University of Southern Queensland,
Australia in 2006. He currently is an associate member of
HKICPA and a fellow member of the CPA Australia. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Sin has served companies in different
industries in Hong Kong, including those listed in Hong Kong
and overseas. He possesses over 20 years of management
experience in areas of accounting, business strategy and
corporate restructuring.

Mr. Zhao Ping, aged 51, was appointed as our executive
Director on 30 October 2013. Mr. Zhao graduated from %
BIRE (Anhui University) in 1985 with a bachelor’s degree in
Chinese. He has served as the general manager of FIITiE
SRR EABR AR (Shenzhen Yuanjing Shengdi Investment
Company Limited*) since 2009. He has been responsible for
corporate strategic planning, investment and management in
real estates, hotel and natural resources projects. Prior to that,
Mr. Zhao has accumulated more than 20 years of experience in
investment, business operation and cultural development from
various corporations.

With effect from 22 October 2014, Mr. Zhao Ping resigned as
an executive Director.

Mr. Ho Yuk Hay, aged 35, was appointed as our executive
Director on 30 October 2013 and company secretary of our
company on 11 February 2014. Mr. Ho graduated from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor’'s degree
in Accountancy in 2001 and a master’'s degree in Corporate
Governance in 2012. Mr. Ho is a Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong and an Associate of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators in London. He has worked in an accounting
firm with international presence for over nine years. Mr. Ho has
acted as the chief financial officer of Sino Splendid Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (Stock Code: 8006)) (“Sino Splendid”) since
September 2012.

Mr. Ho Yuk Hay resigned as an executive Director with effect
from 28 October 2014 and as our company secretary with
effect from 2 January 2015.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Chi Wa, aged 46, was appointed as our non-
executive Director on 27 November 2013. Mr. Chow received
a master’s degree in corporate governance from the Open
University of Hong Kong. He has acted as an executive director,
chief executive officer and the company secretary of Sino
Splendid since March 2013. During his tenure in Sino Splendid,
Mr. Ho Yuk Hay, a then executive Director, acted as the chief
financial officer of that company. Mr. Chow is a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is an associate of the
Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He possesses
extensive experience in finance and accounting.

Ms. Yip Sum Yu, aged 24, was appointed as our non-executive
Director on 10 November 2014. She is currently a consultant
of an investment company. Ms. Yip has gained valuable
experience in investments and investors relations in connection
with both listed and private investments. She did not hold any
other directorships in public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the last three years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yao Enshu, aged 82, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 7 June 2010. He was appointed
as Ae TEHLH AR T K (Deputy Head of the Personnel
Department in the Ministry of Metallurgical Industry*) in the
PRC in 1983 and was appointed as /A& T XS AZT T E
(Head of the Human Resources Department in the Ministry
of Metallurgical Industry®) in 1988. He was recognised as a
senior economist by Ja& T2} (The Ministry of Metallurgical
Industry®) in the PRC in 1992.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Tong Yiu On, aged 48, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 10 October 2014. He is a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Mr. Tong has served as the chief
financial officer of Infinity Chemical Holdings Company Limited
(a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 640)) and its executive director and company
secretary since December 2011. From September 2000 to
November 2008, he served as the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Sinotronics Holdings Limited (currently
known as Kingwell Group Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1195)) and
he concurrently acted as its executive director from December
2002 to November 2008. Prior to joining such company, he had
nine years of financial management, accounting and auditing
experience from various companies listed in Hong Kong and
overseas and an international accounting firm.

Mr. Li Yik Sang, aged 39, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 10 October 2014. He has over 14
years of experience in auditing, finance and accounting. He has
served as the chief financial officer, authorised representative
and company secretary of Meike International Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 953)) since August 2009. Mr. Li served as an audit
assistant and a semi-senior auditor in Grant Thornton from
November 2000 to December 2002. He later worked as a staff
accountant, senior accountant and manager in Ernst & Young
from January 2003 to January 2007. He acted as the chief
financial officer of China Packaging Group Company Limited
(a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 572)) from January 2007 to July 2009. He also
served as an independent non-executive director of China
Agrotech Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1073)) from December
2011 to June 2014. He received his bachelor’'s degree in
commerce from the University of Queensland, Australia in
December 1998. He received his master’s degree in commerce
(information systems) from the University of Queensland,
Australia in August 2000. Mr. Li has been a member of CPA
Australia since April 1999 and was granted a certificate of
certified practicing accountant of CPA Australia in November
2006 and he has been a member of HKICPA since February
2007.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve, aged 41, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 19 November 2010. Graduated from The University of
Auckland, New Zealand with a bachelor’s degree in Commerce
(Accounting) in 1995, Mr. Tsui is a Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong and a Chartered Accountant in New Zealand. He
has also obtained the qualification of Financial Risk Manager
from the Global Association of Risk Professional. Mr. Tsui
worked for a major international accounting firm as an audit
manager from 1995 to 2001. From 2001 till now, he works as
auditor in various companies. Mr. Tsui has more than 15 years
of experience in the auditing field.

With effect from 10 October 2014, Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve
resigned as independent non-executive Director.

Mr. Wong Kwong Chi, aged 63, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 27
November 2013. Mr. Wong received a Bachelor of Science
degree and a Master of Business Administration degree from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He was an executive
director of Sino Splendid from March 2010 to July 2012 and
the chief executive officer of such company from March 2010
to November 2013. During his tenure at such company, Mr.
Ho Yuk Hay, an executive Director, acted as its chief financial
officer. Mr. Wong was a director of CDC Corporation, a
company formerly listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market, until
September 2011. Mr. Wong has served as an independent non-
executive director of Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited (a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code:8159)) since September 2004. He
was an independent non-executive director of Fountain Set
(Holdings) Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 420)) from August 1998 to June
2012. He has been a founding partner of Whiz Partners Asia
Ltd. since November 2013.

With effect from 10 October 2014, Mr. Wong Kwong Chi
resigned as independent non-executive Director.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lu Yongchao, aged 35, was appointed as our chief
executive officer on 2 January 2015. He obtained a diploma
in Business Administration for Real Estate Entrepreneurs in
China at Sun Yat-sen University and a diploma in English at
Guangdong University of Foreign Studies. He was a team
member of Ample Luck International Capital Group Limited, a
domestic wellknown fund management group.

Mr. Lu has extensive experience in business development,
market development, media management, finance and
Information Technology industry and years of investment,
financing and fund management history. He has rich experience
in the enterprise strategic management, internet strategy,
brand management, investment and financing management.
He was the founder of Enjoymedia Holdings Company Limited,
which was listed on the OTCBB in 2006 and was named one
of the hundred most Chinese Concept corporation listed in the
United States of America. Prior to that Mr. Lu had been the
Chief Executive of the online websites YESITE and ITNOW, as
well as the Whirlpool Kit Department Head in China. Mr. Lu
had assisted listing and financing of different enterprises while
working in an investment company in China, and had served
as the director of Taiwan listed corporation China Mobile Digital
Group. He also had served as a director of a well-known
German outdoor brand VAUDE.
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Mr. Wang Zhizhong, aged 47, is the deputy general manager
and the head of our Production Department. Mr. Wang joined
our Group in 2005. Mr. Wang was qualified as an assistant
engineer by EHT AZER (Wuxi Municipal Personnel Bureau®)
in 1995. He obtained L&MEHEIKRTKEFZEZ (Certificate
for Accomplisher of Technological Achievement in Shanghai*)
for each of the project named “/84& 451 B /A5 T 22 L AE AT &Y
(Development of hollow composite fusion cast blocks*) and “X
AWEE LSEBANERAME RENFR” (Research on
novel refractories for super structure of glass furnace*) from £
BHRERMZE® (Science and Technology Commission of
Shanghai Municipality) in 2000.

Mr. Wang worked in the production technology department in
various companies including Yixing Wellfire Nonmetal Materials
Co., Ltd. EEEBEIFEBMHBR AR and EEPNEXFR
A7) (Yixing Zhongcun Kiln Products Co., Ltd.*), before joining
our Group in 2005. In addition, Mr. Wang, jointly with Mr. Xu and
Dr. Zhang, invented the FI#EHIR AREHNEEAZEE (Mono
block Stopper with controlled gas flow) which was registered as
a patent (in respect of utility) in the PRC in May 2010.

Mr. Wen Zhuowei, aged 37, joined us in 2007 as head of our
Production Department and worked as head of our Purchasing
Department in 2013. Mr. Wen is mainly responsible for our
procurement and environmental protection matters. Mr. Wen
graduated from JL# & BEHEERKNE (Jiangsu Radio and TV
University*). He worked for jI& M2 5 A @AR AT (Nike
Jiangsu) Sport Products Co., Limited*) as production supervisor
from 2000 to 2005 and worked as shift leader in #iZRHE (&H
) B2 "] (Weimi Science and Technology (Yixing) Co., Ltd*)
from 2006 to 2007 prior to joining our Group.

Mr. Dai Donglin, aged 46, joined us in 2007 as executive
regional sales manager. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Arts from Henan University in 1992. He then joined Vesuvius
Advanced Ceramics (Suzhou) Co. Ltd. from 1995 to 2004.
Mr. Dai furthered his studies on Civil and Commercial Law
between 1998 and 2000 in Jilin University. He has many years
of experiences in sales management.

For the purpose of this section, “*” denotes unofficial English translation.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is primarily engaged in the manufacturing of
advanced steel flow control products used in the continuous
casting steel making process to protect, control and regulate
the flow of molten steel, and manufacture and sale of paper
converting equipment and other relating equipment.

The Group’s turnover is mainly derived from business activities
in Mainland China. An analysis of the Group’s income for the
year is set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the Company’s major subsidiaries as at 31
December 2014 are set out in note 35 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 57 of this report.

The state of the Group’s and the Company’s affairs at 31
December 2014 is set out in the consolidated statement of
financial position and statement of financial position on pages
58 and 147 of this report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The result, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, are summarised on page 152 of this report.
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Report of the Directors
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of property, plant and equipment of the Group as at
31 December 2014 are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
there was a sufficiency of public float the Company’s securities
as required under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company and
its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders as at 31 December 2014 amounted to
approximately RMB221,603,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB117,270,000).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable
to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Percentage

of the total
purchases/sales
accounted for

Purchases
— the largest supplier 15%
— five largest suppliers combined 48%
Sales
— the largest customer 12%
— five largest customers combined 36%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest
in the five largest suppliers or customers of the Group noted
above.

At no time during the year under review, none of the Directors,
their associates or shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any interest in the customers or suppliers disclosed
above.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Yejun (Chairman)?
Mr. Sin Kwok Wai Ronald?
Mr. Zhao Ping®

Mr. Ho Yuk Hay*

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Chi Wa
Ms. Yip Sum Yu®

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yao Enshu

Mr. Tong Yiu On®

Mr. Li Yik Sang®

Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve’
Mr. Wong Kwong Chi”

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lu Yongchao?®

U Resigned as chief executive officer on 2 January 2015
2 Appointed on 10 October 2014

g Resigned on 22 October 2014

i Resigned on 28 October 2014

J Appointed on 10 November 2014

@ Appointed on 10 October 2014

g Resigned on 10 October 2014

E Appointed on 2 January 2015

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

Directors’ profiles are set out on pages 30 to 36 of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Xu Yejun, entered into a service contract with our Company
pursuant to which he agreed to act as executive Directors for
an initial term of three years with effect from 7 June 2010. The
term of service shall be renewed and extended automatically
by one year on the expiry of such initial term and on the expiry
of every successive period of one year thereafter, unless either
party has given at least three months’ written notice of non-
renewal before the expiry of the then existing term.

Mr. Sin Kwok Wai Ronald is appointed for an initial term of
three years commencing from 10 October 2014 renewable
automatically for a successive term of one year each
commencing from the next day after the expiry of the then
current term of appointment, unless terminated by either Mr.
Sin or the Company giving not less than three months’ notice
in writing expiring at the end of the initial term or at any time
thereafter.

Mr. Zhao Ping and Mr. Ho Yuk Hay has entered into a service
contract with our Company pursuant to which they agreed
to act as executive Directors for an initial term of three years
with effect from 30 October 2013. The term of service shall be
renewed and extended automatically by one year on the expiry
of such initial term and on the expiry of every successive period
of one year thereafter, unless either party has given at least
three months’ written notice of non-renewal before the expiry of
the then existing term.

Mr. Chow Chi Wa, our non-executive Director, and Mr. Wong
Kwong Chi, our independent non-executive Director has been
appointed for an initial term of one year commencing from 27
November 2013 renewable automatically for successive term of
one year each commencing from the next day after the expiry
of then current term of appointment, unless terminated by either
party has given at least three months’ notice in writing expiring
at the end of the initial term or at any time thereafter.
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Ms. Yip Sum Yu was appointed for an initial term of one year
commencing from 10 November 2014 renewable automatically
for successive term of one year each commencing from the next
day after the expiry of the then current term of appointment,
unless terminated by either Ms. Yip or the Company giving not
less than three months’ notice in writing expiring at the end of
the initial term or at any time thereafter.

Mr. Yao Enshu, an independent non-executive Director, has
been appointed for an initial term of one year commencing from
7 June 2010 renewable automatically for successive term of
one year each commencing from the next day after the expiry
of then current term of appointment, unless terminated by either
Mr. Yao Enshu himself or our Company giving not less than
three months’ notice in writing expiring at the end of the initial
term or at any time thereafter.

Mr. Tong Yiu On was appointed for an initial term of one year
commencing from 10 October 2014 renewable automatically for
successive term of one year each commencing from the next
day after the expiry of the then current term of appointment,
unless terminated by either Mr. Tong or the Company giving not
less than three months’ notice in writing expiring at the end of
the initial term or at any time thereafter.
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Mr. Li Yik San was appointed for an initial term of one year
commencing from 10 October 2014 renewable automatically for
successive term of one year each commencing from the next
day after the expiry of the then current term of appointment,
unless terminated by either Mr. Li or the Company giving not
less than three months’ notice in writing expiring at the end of
the initial term or at any time thereafter.

Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve, an independent non-executive Director
appointed on 21 November 2010, has been appointed for an
initial term of one year commencing from 21 November 2010
renewable automatically for successive term of one year each
commencing from the next day after the expiry of then current
term of appointment, unless terminated by either Mr. Tsui Siu
Hang, Steve himself or our Company giving not less than three
months’ notice in writing expiring at the end of the initial term or
at any time thereafter.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the particulars disclosed in note 28 under the
heading “Related party transactions” to the financial statements,
there were no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business, to which the Company or any of the
Company’s subsidiaries was a party nor there were any other
contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business
between the Company or any of the Company’s subsidiaries
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the year
in which a Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a material
interest.

No contract of significance had been entered into between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
entered into.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, none of the interests or short
positions of the Directors or chief executive of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in
the register of the Company required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies (“Model Code”).

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interest or short positions
of the in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS FERRZES
R-ZE-—NMFE+-A=1+—8  ARQF
BEEMA UTAL (RRAEERITH
RERSN) RAR BN K AR B R0 o
BARERZRBERDIEIB6HELR
ARAEENECMZERIORRMT

As at 31 December 2014, so far as was known to the Directors
of the Company, the following persons, other than the Directors
and chief executive of the Company, had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company,
which were required to be recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:
Long and short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares REOREBRODZFERKE
Interest in Approximate
Name of Number of underlying Shares percentage of
Shareholder Nature of interest securities held of share option  shareholding
(Note 1) (Note 1) (%)
{2 4 Bk
BEER ERE FsESHE HRRRER =544
(Hiz1) (Hit1) (%)
Mr. Jiang Qi Hang Interest in a controlled 205,012,000 Shares (L) (Note 2) 13.09%
corporation
IR E REHZEER 205,012,000\ &M (L) (#/722)
Mr. Ng Hang Fai Calvin Interest in a controlled 130,000,000 Shares (L) (Note 3) 8.30%
corporation
REBEAE REHZEER 130,000,000 AR 1A (L) (A7i£3)
Fully Wealthy Inc. Beneficial owner 205,012,000 Shares (L) (Note 2) 13.09%
BREAA 205,012,000 &M (L) (Hit2)
Win All Management Limited Beneficial owner 130,000,000 Shares (L) (Note 3) 8.30%
ExfEBA 130,000,000 1A (L) (#7723)
Notes: et -
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares. 1. [LI RRZALTRARBIRG 247 -
2. Fully Wealthy Inc. is the legal and beneficial owner of 2. Fully Wealthy Inc. RARRZHEHT

approximately 13.09% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company. Fully Wealthy Inc. is wholly owned by Mr. Jiang Qi

Hang.

3. Win All Management Limited is the legal and beneficial owner
of approximately 8.30% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company. Win All Management Limited is wholly owned by Mr.
Ng Hai Fai Calvin.

Ao

REBEE2EHRE -
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Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company are not aware that there is any party who, as
at 31 December 2014, had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company, which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or be directly or
indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
of general meetings of the Company or substantial shareholders
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”), which was adopted on 7 June 2010 (the
“Adoption Date”), for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to selected eligible participants for their contribution
to the Group. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for ten years from the
Adoption Date.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include the
following:

(i)  any employee (whether full time or part time) of the Group
or any entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which any member
of the Group holds any equity interest (including any
executive director but excluding any non-executive director
of the Group or any Invested Entity);

(i) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Group or any Invested Entity;
(i) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the

Group or any Invested Entity;

(iv) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

AARREERITHRARFAA R _-F—
ME+—A=+—0  UEEFMATER
RERD RARRER D T HEABARERE SR
H B R I EXVED 82 %39 & 2 & X M A&
NEWEZERIORR - HERKAEEHR
BAMEAIER TERR B RIRARRA
RIFES KB RDIEIB6ERFENE T
MAARENERRROBERAE LRR

EAERIR A E(ES %A £ 2 s -

LT
RRRRA — BB 2 (TR E

i) ZEER_F-FTFXALH
(THMBMY]) X% BNERACHES
B2 RERERENERM  UXRBRE
HAKBEERZER - RIFERTEOHRE
7l BRBERE SR RMEEE—&
B BHtTE-

BREAE 2EERBHEEBEATA
T ¢

() AEEXAKEETAKRERFRFE
BEzEMNER ((HRERE])
ZEMEE (TREBIFRE) (B
BAKE S ERRKREEBNEM
HTEFETRREEEMIENTE
%)

(i) AEENEFFEZEERE 2 TME
HNITEE (BB IENITESE)

(iiy 1A A G B SRR AR IR B E B A (A
B R aRMEE ek AR 2 A4
FERS

vy AEESHEAEKREERBZEME
E s



(v) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(viy any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(vii) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of the Group or
any Invested Entity; and

(vii) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliances or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
120,000,000, representing approximately 7.66% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report. The maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise
of the options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
(including both exercised and outstanding options) to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company for the time being. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules),
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive Directors (excluding independent non-executive
Director who is the grantee of the options). In addition, where
any grant of share options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or to any of their respective
associates, would result in the Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such
person in excess of 0.1% of the Shares in issue and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Shares at
the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in a 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant, such grant of
share options are subject to Shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period for
the share options granted is determined by the Board, whose
period may commence from the date of acceptance of the
offer for the grant of share options but shall end in any event
not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of the option
subject to the provisions for early termination under the Share
Option Scheme.

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board, but shall not
be less than the highest of:

()  the closing price of Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of the
offer of the grant, which must be a trading day;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

Since the Adoption Date and up to 31 December 2014,
120,000,000 share options has been granted by the Company,
representing 7.66% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2014.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARE OPTIONS

None of the Directors held any outstanding share option of
the Company as at 1 January 2014 and no share option was
granted by the Company during the year ended 31 December
2014.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2014 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors or any of their spouses or children under
the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in the Company or any other body corporate.

EMPLOYEES’ INTEREST IN SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

Details of the options to subscribe for shares of the Company
under the Share Option Scheme for the period under review are
as follows:
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No. of share options

fRENE

Outstandingat ~ Granted Exercised Forfeited Cancelled  Lapsed Outstanding at Exercise
Date of 1 January during during  during during during 31 December price of Exercise
grant 2014  theyear theyear theyear  theyear  the year 2014 share options period

RZZ-mE RZZ-ME

-A-8 +ZR=t+-8 k&
Class of grantee ERABRH RHAM AT FARY  FAOE FREk FREE ERRY AT fHEm fHE

HK$

#r
Other employees HES (Hiztr) 221172010 4,000,000 - - - - (4,000,000) = 1408 221172011 to
(Note 1) (Note 2) 2111/2020
Wiz) 2/11/2011%
2111/2020
27/19/2011 4,000,000 - (2,400,000) - - (1,600,000) - 0476 27/9/2012 to
(Note 3) 26/9/2021
(Hit3) 21/9/2012%
26/9/2021
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Notes:

1. Other employees include employees of the Group (other than
Directors) working under employment contract of the Group
which are regarded as “continuous contract” for the purpose
of the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). As disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ Interest
in share options” in the Report of the Directors above, none of
the Directors held any share option as at 1 January 2014 and no
share option was granted by the Company during the year ended
31 December 2014.

2. These options granted under the Share Option Scheme have a
term of ten years commencing from 22 November 2010 and shall
vest and become exercisable in three tranches in the proportion
of 30%, 60% and 100% on 22 November 2011, 22 November
2012 and 22 November 2013 respectively.

8. These options granted under the Share Option Scheme have a
term of ten years commencing from 27 September 2011 and shall
vest and become exercisable in three tranches in the proportion
of 30%, 60% and 100% on 27 September 2012, 27 September
2013 and 27 September 2014 respectively.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE COMPANY’S SECURITIES

Other than as disclosed under the sections “Share Option
Scheme” and “Directors’ Interest in Shares” above, at no time
during the year under review was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of
the Company or their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in the
SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the
Group in the usual course of business are set out in note
32 to the financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction
as defined under the Listing Rules.
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PLACING OF EXISTING SHARES AND
SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES

January Placing and January Subscription

On 10 January 2014, the Company entered into a conditional
placing and subscription agreement with a placing agent
and Mr. Chen Hong (“Vendor”) in relation to (i) the placing of
a maximum of 200,000,000 existing ordinary shares of the
Company to not less than six placees who are not acting in
concert with connected persons of the Company at HK$0.38
per Share (“January Placing”), representing a discount of
approximately 18.28% to the closing price of HK$0.465 per
Share on 10 January 2014; and (ii) the subscription of up to
200,000,000 Shares by the Vendor (“January Subscription”)
at HK$0.38 per Share. The Directors considered that the
January Placing and the January Subscription represent an
opportunity to raise capital for the Company while broadening
the Shareholder base and capital base of the Company.
Accordingly, the Directors consider the January Placing and the
January Subscription were in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole. As the Vendor was a substantial
shareholder and thus a connected person of the Company, the
January Subscription constituted a connected transaction under
the Listing Rules.

The January Placing and the January Subscription were
completed on 10 January 2014 and 20 January 2014
respectively and a total of 200,000,000 Shares were allotted
and issued to the Vendor. The net proceeds raised per Share
upon completion of the January Placing and the January
Subscription are approximately HK$0.375 per Share. The whole
amount of the net proceeds of approximately HK$75 million will
be used for general working capital and/or to finance potential
investment projects. Details of the January Placing and the
January Subscription were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 10 January 2014.

Report of the Directors

EEERE

EERBRGREMMAEG

—AREFEK—ARBER

RZE—WFE—HA+TH AAREEER
BRExEE ([BEF)) FILBBRHERE
RREmZE - WA E M)A SRR 70.38
P IT 2 (B8 A A 7] 5 %200,000,0008%
RELTBREE T AL RAZEARTF]
ZBEANTIWIE—BITEA T 2 EEA
([—RBEEEFE])  HERZ-T—NF—
AT+ BRmEFRRKH0.4658 I :E 4
18.28% : M (i)E 77 A & IR A% 190.387% 7T
2 (B R & %200,000,0000% &5 ([—
ARBEIE]) EFEERE —ALES
BHE—ARBEFED—BARRRIEEE
¢ FINEAREARREREARRZE
REMzHe  -EHit - EFRAE - — AR
EEER - ARBEEFEERAAIRKR
ZEENR BHREARNRRZEER
REAmMARAGZAEAL - M—AR
BEEEK EHRANBET  BERS -

—AREFEEE—ARBIEE IR
T-NFE—A+tBR=-ZE—NF—A=+
H5ERK © & ££200,000,0000% f% 17 2 B 3%
RETTER - —AREFER—ARE
EETKE  BREROMESE 2REF
A B0.3758 7T - FTSHIEFRE 2 B5
#975,000,0008 T AE—REEE S
%/ SBSBEREEE - —ARESE
R—ARBEHEZFBEIANAQFBEE
—E-HFE—A+HZRAE -

Annual Report 2014
TE-NEFR



Report of the Directors

EEERE

June Placing and June Subscription

On 25 June 2014, the Company entered into a conditional
placing and subscription agreement with a placing agent
and the Vendor in relation to (i) the placing of a maximum
of 110,000,000 existing ordinary shares of the Company to
not less than six placees who are not acting in concert with
connected persons of the Company at HK$0.57 per Share
(“June Placing”), representing a discount of approximately
19.72% to the closing price of HK$0.71 per Share on 25 June
2014; and (i) the subscription of up to 110,000,000 Shares
by the Vendor (“June Subscription”) at HK$0.57 per Share.
The Directors considered that the June Placing and the June
Subscription represent an opportunity to raise capital for the
Company while broadening the Shareholder base and capital
base of the Company. Accordingly, the Directors consider the
June Placing and the June Subscription are in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. As the Vendor
was a substantial shareholder and thus a connected person of
the Company, the June Subscription constituted a connected
transaction under the Listing Rules.

The June Placing and the June Subscription were completed
on 26 June 2014 and 7 July 2014 respectively and a total of
110,000,000 Shares were allotted and issued to the Vendor.
The net proceeds raised per Share upon completion of the
June Placing and the June Subscription are approximately
HK$0.555 per Share. The whole amount of the net proceeds of
approximately HK$61 million will be used for general working
capital and/or to finance potential investment projects. Details
of the June Placing and the June Subscription were set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 25 June 2014.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the substantial shareholders of the
Company and their respective associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group or has any other
conflict of interest with the Group during the year and up to the
date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees and senior
management of the Group is set by the remuneration committee
of the Company on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard
to market competitiveness, individual performance and
achievement.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to among other Directors and other eligible employees
of the Group. Details of the scheme are set out in note 29 to
the financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”
of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process and internal controls
of the Group.

The Audit Committee currently comprises Mr. Tong Yiu On
(Chairman), Mr. Yao Enshu and Mr. Li Yik Sang. The Audit
Committee has reviewed and discussed with the management
and the external auditor for the financial reporting matters
including the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2014.

AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board
Sinoref Holdings Limited
Xu Yejun

Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
=3

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SINOREF HOLDINGS LIMITED
ERZERARAT
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sinoref Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to
151, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

R R
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—OF+ - A=+—BOFEEHBHRRE
AEZEZALLFENGARRRAEMERE
WamR  RARREHRNGEARERE
Ko UREFEETERRMEREGBEREE
£t o

EFNGOMBERAREORE

BERREZARBEREBEESMASH
ECEEMBREER) REE(RF]
fRPI) MR ERBIF B FBHRE - A
CHEVBHRRIELEEMRFARER
NEBERRREGEVEREAVED
MEBIEH] - AR A M B RE TN FEAN
MEF SRR M G B B AR -

BBE R E
BZANEERREBEMANEAEZESRS
BHHRELER - LERBRFPERE
B E KA BEARZRER®RE @ IR
B2 A EREEME A - RATEH
AR ERABFER E A T8 EeFdE
EAEE - RFICREEFESHAMREMR
(BB ET L) E£TEMN - RFE
AIZRFFIETEBRE - LRSI RATT
Eit WAEBESRAMBHRREES T
FEEMEASHE R -

Annual Report 2014
TE-NEFR



Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBEHRE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2014, and of the its loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

6 March 2015

a Sinoref Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEEEkEMZEIRER

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross (loss) profit
Interest income on bank deposits
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade receivables
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of property,
plant and equipment
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other expenses
Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

Loss per share
Basic and diluted

Notes
B 5T
WA 7
SHER A
£ (18) 7
IRITIE A F B ULA
B F BRI TR
REEE
MYE - BEREE
REREEE
15
$HE ko S
TERY
E b2
ZURID RN
R 7 A BT 1R 10
IR 9
ARBHEE AEBEFER
E5E M FE AN RS 2%
SREE 14

EARREE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

2013
—T—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TT ARBFIT
240,916 186,436
(267,004) (161,891)
(26,088) 24,545
835 1,300
(30,623) =
(24,269) (29,131)
(27,484) (20,608)
(25,591) (17,175)
(47,306) (15,671)
(1,050) =
(181,576) (56,740)
7,874 (36)
(173,702) (56,776)

(RMB11.55 cents)

(RMB4.73 cents)

(AEH#11.55%) AR¥4.735
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B BT ESAR O R

At 31 December 2014
RZZE—WmF+=—A=+—H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Deposit paid for acquisition of
a subsidiary

Prepaid lease payments

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Bills receivables

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Prepaid lease payments

Tax recoverable

Restricted bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and bills payables
Other payables and accruals
Tax liabilities

Bank borrowing

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liability
Deferred tax liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

FRERE

5k 3

Hi BB E

WEEHT B Rl
BEfNEE

AR E

REEE

FE

Z 5 ek E

JiE Uy = 4
HM%W%E\EQ&
AN B

%ﬁﬁ%%
AU B 18
ZIRERITER
RITHRBRIES

REAR
B RNFEMENRE
H A FE( R M ERT & B
MIARE
RITEE

R E R E

RERERTDRAR

FRBDRR
EEHBERE

B R
A&7
i

e

The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 151 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
6 March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

EF

DIRECTOR

a Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMERERATF

2014 2013

—F—mF —T—=F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

FieE AR®TR ARBTT

15 75,136 73,475

16 6,542 -

17 12,050 -

18 55,125 -

19 15,560 9,628

164,413 83,103

20 39,900 22,939

21 257,465 172,365

22 42,708 32,854

19,098 2,254

19 391 235

2,963 2,681

23 1,869 -

23 102,678 312,322

467,072 545,650

24 46,342 28,712

25 22,854 17,456

5,528 5,528

26 20,000 -

94,724 51,696

372,348 493,954

536,761 577,057

27 10,213 13,720

526,548 563,337

28 133,169 104,201

393,379 459,136

526,548 563,337

REBSTEISIAZREMBHRAESE

R-F-RFE= ARAERRETIH
WHATRERS

EF

DIRECTOR



At 1 January 2013

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

Recognition of equity settled
share-based payments

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

Release of share options reserve R HRAZERER

upon cancellation of
equity-settled share
options arrangement

At 31 December 2013

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

Issue of shares upon placing
(note 28(a) and note 28(d))

Exercise of share options

(note 28(b))

Lapse of share options

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

Issue of shares upon acquisition FMREEN B A AR

of subsidiaries (note 28(c))

Repurchase of ordinary shares

(note 28(e))

At 31 December 2014

Share
Share Share Special  Statutory options  Retained
capital  premium reserve  reserves reserve profits Total
k& RHER 2 HARE  EERFE BRERE KU &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
(Note a) (Note b)
(Mf3ta) (Hizko)
RZE-Z%
—A—H 104,201 80,442 46,867 48,818 32,184 307,217 619,729
FREEREZERY
&% = - - - - (56,776)  (56,776)
RRAEE AR
RERNR = - - - 384 - 384
BRI ER
B
- - - - (30,038) 30,038 =
RZE-Z%
+-A=1+—-H 104,201 80,442 46,867 48,818 2,530 280,479 563,337
ERBEREZERY
bk - - - - - (1787020  (173,702)
REERETRG
(FizE28(a) K
Hiz28(d)) 24,474 83,514 - - - - 107,988
T RkRE
(Mi7E28(0)) 189 990 - - (277) - 902
BREL N - - - - (2,259) 2,253 =
Bkin
(FizE28(c)) 7,312 35,827 - - - - 43,139
BEZBER
(Fi7E28(e) (3,007)  (12,100) - - - - (15,116)
R-Z-MF
+-R=+-H 133,169 188,664 46,867 48,818 - 109,030 526,548
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERBEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

Notes:

(@)

Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of shares of the Company issued as consideration in
exchange for the aggregate of the paid-up capital of the
subsidiaries of the Company arising upon the corporate
reorganisation to rationalise the Group’s structure prior to listing
of the Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), the PRC subsidiaries
are required to provide for PRC statutory reserves, including
enterprise expansion fund and general reserve fund, by way of
appropriations from its statutory net profit (based on the PRC
statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries) but before
dividend distributions.

All appropriations to the funds are made at the discretion of the
board of directors of PRC subsidiaries. The board of directors
of the PRC subsidiaries shall decide on the amounts to be
appropriated based on its profitability each year.

The enterprise expansion fund may be used to increase registered
capital subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities. The
general reserves fund may be used to offset accumulated losses
or increase the registered capital subject to approval from the
relevant PRC authorities.

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

Rl EERARARRNETBHE R
SBRAR ([BEFT]) EHATA T B
EAREREMETRRAEAZE  1F
RGBT B R RN REMETZA
RERRMEEE - B EHE D F
ABARHRER 2 HHER °

REEHEARKFE ([HE ) BREED
KoE - BB B A R 78 18 B % R i A
FEE (REZEH BB QR 2R BEE
I HmR) MoK BATIRLL IR E ©
EFERERE  BRCEBRRESR
—RERES -

B2 2ADETIAZETBE R A
RERGHERE - FRMBARCE
EZSRREBESFRNENTRES T
DBCZFIR -

CERRESARAREMEMEAR - H
AN AH A P B AR P 2 LA 1R T R 4E
B —RFHES A AREHERFEE
S IB INFEM A AN - HEZRERIS AR R R B B
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

2014 2013
—2-mE —T=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B zE AR®TT ARET T
Operating activities wEIE
Loss before taxation BriiRIE1E (181,576) (56,740)
Adjustments for: AT SBEELAE -
Interest income on bank deposits RITFEFZFEUWA (835) (1,300)
Interest expenses FERAE 1,050 =
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment Rl EE 23 =
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BEREREITE 12,345 12,590
Impairment loss recognised in respect of 5B 5 U IRTER
trade receivables mEEE 30,623 =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of AWE - BEMERE
property, plant and equipment RN EEBE 24,269 29,131
Allowance on inventories FERE 946 =
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BN E B 352 234
Amortisation of other intangible assets H b & 919 -
Share-based payments expense AR BEEI RS = 384
Operating cash flows before movements in EEENEEF 2
working capital RERGRE (111,884) (15,701)
Increase in inventories FEEM (5,644) (2,960
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e MR B 1 (113,344) (41,214)
(Increase) decrease in bills receivables FEWERE (3gm) m > (9,854) 14,083
Increase in other receivables, deposits and HMERZIE ek
prepayments TETFIRLE N (11,320) (1,569)
Increase in trade and bills payables ZZRNFIER
e RIBIE M 13,695 6,175
Increase (decrease) in other payables HibEfIa R
and accruals fEETERE M ORd) 263 (11,491)
Net cash used in operations REMARLSHE (238,088) (52,677)
PRC income tax refunded BREREMER = 605
Net cash used in operating activities EETRFRRAAEPH (238,088) (52,072)

Annual Report 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

Investing activities

Interest received

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Net cash inflow from acquisition of
subsidiaries

Placement of pledged bank deposits

Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares upon placing

Exercise of share options

Payment on repurchase of ordinary shares
Interest paid

Net cash from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year,
representing bank balances and cash

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

Notes

P EE

REED
BWFIE
BEYE  BELRE
WHREHB AR

ReRAFR 33
FHREERRTER
WEHMBARZENEZE 18

RRETDMARESH

BMEEH
RECERZETRN
PSR
TR i
BLAR A E @A AR
ERFHE

RMRETDFREREPH

HeRBALFEMED
BH

FMEGRBALFEN

FROGRBAGEFEY
RTTRESH IR SR

2013

“E-=fF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETIT
835 1,300
(8,341) 6,711)
220 =
(1,869) =
(55,125) =
(64,280) (5,411)
107,988 -
902 =
(15,116) =
(1,050) -
92,724 =
(209,644) (57,483)
312,322 369,805
102,678 312,322




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 35.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new interpretation and amendments to
HKFRSs (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “new
and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to Investment entities
HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 27

Amendments to Offsetting financial assets and

HKAS 32 financial liabilities
Amendments to Recoverable amount disclosures
HKAS 36 for non-financial assets
Amendments to Novation of derivatives and
HKAS 39 continuation of hedge
accounting
HK(IFRIC) — INT 21 Levies

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

—RE#

ARBERSESEMKLSER
AR DA RAR AR EB XA
Eme RRARZAMPERR TR
ERMB WU ERFRIARE
] —EARE -

ARBB—RXRELZEBRRF - AR
A B ARz E2EBEHNM T
35 °

HREMBHRERAAREZ - MA
RETRARBZEER -

BRAMITREETEENE
iﬁ??ﬁﬂﬂ(FéﬁEEﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁE
g

RAFEE  AEBECHEREAAT
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g]) M 2 FR] 2B R HE BV
WELERZEFT AT 5 35T R
RIEFTEBMERELER])
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
T-MFE+-—A=+—HLFE

BE—

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 9
HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 27

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Sinoref Holdings Limited

EMZERBARAE

Financial instruments’
Regulatory deferral accounts?

Revenue from contracts with
customers?®

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations®

Disclosure initiative®

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and
amortisation®

Agriculture: Bearer plants®

Defined benefit plans:
Employee contributions*

Equity method in separate
financial statements®

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and
its associate or joint venture®

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception®

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle®

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle*

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements
beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier
application permitted.

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017, with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with earlier application permitted.

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2014, with limited exceptions. Earlier application is
permitted.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for
general hedge accounting. Another revised version
of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a)
impairment requirements for financial assets and b) limited
amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category
for certain simple debt instruments.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE—

Z-ME+-A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair
value at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

FERMETRAEEETEEME
BREEAN ((FRMEGHREE
A1) (%)

EEMBREERFR[EMTA]
(&)

BT BHELEDFR s TERTE
g T

e ABYFERIEIN [T
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B AREYESAEERR
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BZEBIE ULhemEE
ERBRTREERBEEZ
RERAERATNARE RAKRE
BAEZNEMEBIA &
FREMEEBALRTFET]
RZ2HAFTE - TEEMER
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HEAER 2 AFETE ° I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless
the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to changes in the financial
liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

o The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types
of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness
test has been overhauled and replaced with the
principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 9 in the future will not affect the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities at 31 December 2014.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS
11 “Construction contracts” and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for these goods or services. Specifically
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BHE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material
impact on the amounts reported and disclosures made in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of HKFRS 15 until the Company performs a detailed
review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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3.

Z-ME+-A=+—BLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-T—NF+-_A=+—HItFE

BB ()

KA 6

Hﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘kﬁﬂm}%ﬁ%%ﬂé\i BEIEAEN
cMEBEHPERZIREBUR
EFTE%E CBRERER AKE
AR ELAR UL R T O 4 I 4 T 88 5 EY
BE RBEUBHAMEEANE
B ARBITHORANEDORFE
Z A0 o BN FEAE R 2 BN — AR X B
ERR IR R o

RUHE BB - FTIRE 2RI RI B
MArEEZ ABRE R HERER
HELA T SBR D -

s EEMRBEEEXAEBENEES
BN EEXRET
DRIREEE G ERIE12
SIFEH] REESEL
F19% [EBB/A ) #ER KA

=

=

o RUEBRH - W AKRN
RETER RPN EE I
Befn SERE R BRI
Ui 75 AR D A ERE R 3R %
Bz BEIEETHE  BIZE
B E R F 25 [ AR
RERNNR]FE(ATX
ZEETHE) Rk

o RBEBUHREEREH
BEREZERDEERD
RIS DEARERES
E (s &M R) R
FsHE -

Annual Report 2014

—z-nErE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets”, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

Contingent consideration that will be settled other than
by the delivery of a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is accounted for as a financial liability.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets
of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sale related taxes.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Sale of goods (continued)
o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purpose, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and
recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE—

3.

Z-ME+-A=+—BLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)
Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the weighted-average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
° the intention to complete the intangible asset and

use or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Research and development costs (continued)

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria listed above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on
the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, bills receivables, other receivables, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

FEEMHBE (B)

SWMIA (#)
EHEE (&)
BERAM XX

ERMEZEANAEEB TR ZEH
A AR A e o 88 7 R R 2 M| B K
ARZTE - BEEMETIIZEH LA
RNFERR <R FHIERALZ
REHRBAERTEGGTRKRE
WA (B3R E IR A X A R] Sk A
NENKBERZ—NER  XHK
AREMGERITER) EREFEL
2K o

WATIRER T ABRF R EAERE

7 o
o
B & e WRIE

B AR e W R IR T R B T 5 R
BZEBERFEMNRZIFTES AL
BE - EXNERRE(BEES
FEURIR ~ R R & « E At FE WK
] ZRGEIRITERLBITERR
B ) WEBRFIRE R HK A RIE
AR EAR

FEBWATIE B ERRF R AR - 1
W B R8T KRR B e R
RO o

Annual Report 2014

ERNETTE N



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investments have
been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and bills receivables, assets are assessed for impairment
on a collective basis even if they were assessed not to be
impaired individually. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and bills receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a receivable is considered uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, other
payables and bank borrowing are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premium or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, (where
appropriate), a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and
equipment with respect to depreciation, management
estimates the useful lives of various categories of
property, plant and equipment according to the industrial
experiences over the usage of property, plant and
equipment and also by reference to the relevant industrial
norm. If the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are less than the original estimated useful
lives due to changes in commercial and technological
environment, such difference will impact the depreciation
charge for the remaining periods. At 31 December 2014,
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is
RMB75,136,000 (2013: RMB73,475,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE—

Z-ME+-A=+—BLLFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying
amount of trade receivables is RMB257,465,000 (2013:
RMB172,365,000), net of allowance for doubtful debts of
RMB30,623,000 (2013: nil).

Estimated impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Determining whether property, plant and equipment is
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of
the cash-generating units to which the property, plant
and equipment has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value.

Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2014
is RMB75,136,000 (net of accumulated impairment loss
recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment
of RMB53,400,000) (2013: RMB73,475,000 (net of
accumulated impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment of RMB29,131,000)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment loss of inventories

The Group makes allowance for inventories based on
an assessment of the net realisable value of inventories.
Allowances are applied to inventories where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the net
realisable value is lower than the cost of inventories.
The identification of obsolete inventories requires the
use of judgment and estimates on the conditions and
marketability of the inventories. Where the subsequent
selling prices decline or increase in costs of completion
and those necessary to make the sales, additional
allowance may arise.

The carrying amount of inventories at 31 December
2014 is RMB39,900,000 (2013: RMB22,939,000) (net of
allowance for inventories of RMB946,000 (2013: nil)).

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires management to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
units and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
present value.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2014
was RMB6,542,000 (2013: nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising share capital, reserves and retained
profits.

The directors of the Group review the capital structure on
a continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital
and the risks associate with the capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt, if necessary.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets SMEE
Loans and receivables (including

cash and cash equivalents)
Financial liabilities &MAR
Amortised cost B SHRK AN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade receivables, bills receivables, other receivables,
restricted bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade and bill payables, other payables and bank
borrowing. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Certain transactions of the Group are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), Euro dollars (“EUR”)
and US dollars (“USD”) which are other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities (i.e.
RMB), which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

denominated financial assets and liabilities at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

Assets

RMB’000

AR®TTT

HKD BT 32,196
EUR BT 12,561
Usb EVin 3,940

6. ®MTH ()

(b)

CREARERE B HREE
()

TS5 (&)
BRR (8)
AEBRBHRYPRAINEHE

ZEMEERTBABMT

Liabilities

R

RMB’000
AR®FT

The financial assets subject to foreign currency risk
represent the bank balances denominated in HKD
and USD and trade receivables denominated in EUR
and USD held by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% appreciation or depreciation of the HKD,
EUR and USD against RMB. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
possible change in foreign exchange rate. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period
for a 5% change in foreign currency rate. A positive
number indicates an decrease in post-tax loss for
the year where HKD, EUR and USD strengthens 5%
against the RMB. For a 5% weakening of HKD, EUR
and USD against RMB, there would be an equal but
opposite impact on the post-tax loss for the year.

HKD BT
EUR BT
USD S

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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BE—

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to restricted bank deposits, bank
balances and bank borrowing at the end of the
reporting period are considered as insignificant.
The Group does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties provided by the
Group is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties, as a means of mitigating
the risk of financial loss from defaults.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

At 31 December 2014, the Group has concentration
of credit risk as 8% (2013: 7%) and 30% (2013:
30%) of the total trade receivables which was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the
five largest customers, respectively. Although the
customers of the Group operate mainly steel casting
plants in the PRC and they are either listed or state
owned enterprises with sound financial position and
good reputation in the industry, full provision has
been made for the individual trade receivables aged
over one year with no subsequent settlement as
historical evidence shows that such receivables are
generally not recoverable, or individual customers
which have been in severe financial difficulties. The
Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted
for 94% (2013: 96%) of the total trade receivables
as at 31 December 2014. In order to minimise the
concentration risk, the management of the Group
has delegated staff responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each of individual
trade debt regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amount. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. £MTITH ()
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) EEEREEZBHRBER
policies (continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) B E LR (E)
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRRBAEEZFTEEHE
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial BHRTEHNINHB 2B T
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the EERBASEESNERAE
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based JXEHEERAZRMBERS
on the earliest date on which the Group can be mERE o
required to pay.
Weighted On
average demand or Total
effective less than Within  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year cash flows amounts
mEEy BERY FEB
ERf® DR3EA 15  ReR4E IREE
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
% ARETT AR®ETr  ARETT  ARETE
As at 31 December 2014 RIZ-WF
+-R=+-8
Trade payables EoRAFTE - 46,342 = 46,342 46,342
Other payables A ENFE - 2,365 - 2,365 2,365
Bank borrowing FTEE 6.9 - 21,380 21,380 20,000
48,707 21,380 70,087 68,707
As at 31 December 2013 RZB-=
+ZR=+-8
Trade payables BoRAFTE - 28,712 = 28,712 28,712
Other payables AR HA - 996 - 996 996
29,708 - 29,708 29,708

(c) Fair values measurements of financial
instruments

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in
the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE

Revenue represents the net amounts received and
receivable for goods sold less returns and discounts in the
normal course of business.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

HKFRS 8 “Operating segments” requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker (the executive
directors) (“CODM”) in order to allocate resources to
segments and to assess their performance.

The Group’s operating activities are attributable to two
operating segments focusing on i) the manufacture and
sale of advanced steel flow control products; and i) the
manufacture and sale of paper converting equipment
and other relating equipment, which is arisen from the
acquisition of Accurate Trade International Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Accura Group”) as set out in note 33. These
operating segments have been identified on the basis of
internal management reports prepared in accordance with
accounting policies which conform to HKFRSs, that are
regularly reviewed by the CODM.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segments:
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B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Segment revenue and results

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Revenue

Gross (loss) profit

Segment loss

Unallocated corporate income
Staff costs (including retirement
benefit scheme contributions)
Operating lease rentals
Unallocated corporate expenses

Loss before taxation

104 Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMZRER DA

FRBiATEIR

HESE (]

DEBAREE

BE_ZT—NFE+-A=+—HL

FE
Manufacture
and sale of
Manufacture paper
and sale of  converting
advanced equipment
steel flow and other
control relating
products equipment Consolidated
NERME
RERME WRINI®M
-1 1 FS REf
BRER A 5 A O
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTET AR%®TE AR%TX
221,912 19,004 240,916
(28,741) 2,653 (26,088)
(167,591) (5,335) (172,926)
98
(1,893)
(665)
(6,190)
(181,576)



8.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Revenue WA

Gross profit E7

Segment loss e

Unallocated corporate income Z Rl /NG ON

Staff costs (including retirement BIRA (BIERN
benefit scheme contributions) A EMERR)

Operating lease rentals RERERS

Unallocated corporate expenses AOEABRY

Loss before taxation BRI RTEE

Segment loss represents the loss incurred by each
segment without allocation of certain administration
costs and other income. This is the measure reported to
the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

BESW (|
DEWMAREE (&)
BHE_ZT—=F+_A=+—HIE
FE
Manufacture
and sale of
Manufacture paper
and sale of converting
advanced equipment
steel flow and other
control relating
products equipment  Consolidated
RERHE
SUERIHE  MRMIRE
= 8 7K A,
PR m MR ra
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR%ETR
186,436 = 186,436
24,545 - 24,545
(50,108) - (50,108)
(2,072)
(844)
(3,716)
(56,740

DEEBEESDBEENEREMIL
BORETITBRRAREMKA -
LTI E RS B MR BF A M AE
BLEERRERENTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

For the year ended 31 December 2014

ASSETS BE

Segment assets DEEE
Unallocated corporate assets FABMAREE
Consolidated total assets REEERE
LIABILITIES fiff

Segment liabilities ari={r
Unallocated corporate liabilities AAMAREE
Consolidated total liabilities FeBRERE

m Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMERERATF

HESE (]

THEERAR

BE_ZT—NFE+-A=+—HL

FE
Manufacture
and sale of
Manufacture paper
and sale of  converting
advanced equipment
steel flow and other
control relating
products  equipment
NERME
RERME HRMIRME
-1 1 FS REf
BRER A 5 A O
RMB’000 RMB’000
AERBTET AR%TET
458,459 85,405
60,907 37,324

Consolidated

RMB’000
ARRTR

543,864

87,621

631,485

98,231

6,706

104,937



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 8. BER® ()
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PHEERERE (H)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued) BE_ZT—MNE+_A=1+—HL
F£E (#)

Manufacture

and sale

Manufacture of paper
and sale of  converting
advanced  equipment
steel flow and other
control relating

products  equipment Others Consolidated
RERME
RERME WBRMIRE

wRAK RRf
RRER Lk

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTE ARRTRZ ARWTRT ARWTR

Other segment information Rt 5 BEH
Amounts included in the SR M EREER

measure of segment profit or PHEERTANEE :

loss or segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets ERDEERE 9,648 30 55,125 64,803
Depreciation of property, 0% BERRETE

plant and equipment 10,940 1,395 10 12,345
Impairment loss recognised in respect of 58 5 UGB RL

trade receivables mEEE 30,623 = = 30,623
Impairment loss recognised in respect of 1% - FiE R &G

property, plant and equipment BRNOAESE 24,269 = = 24,269
Allowances on inventories FERE 284 662 - 946
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments B TAEFIALY 235 117 - 352
Research and development costs TN 32,656 - - 32,656

Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-F-—mF+-A=+—ALFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 8. HESE (&)

THEERESE (B)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

FE
Manufacture
and sale of
Manufacture paper
and sale of converting
advanced equipment
steel flow and other
control relating
products equipment
SUENHE
SUERHE  MRMIRAE
=l 7K RE A
PR E M HAERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEPEE 615,793 -
Unallocated corporate assets RO ARIEE
Consolidated total assets IREEERE
LIABILITIES AR
Segment liabilities DEPBE 58,265 =

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMERERATF

BHE_ZT—=F+-_A=+—81Lt

Consolidated

e
RMB’000
ARETL

615,793

12,960

628,753

58,265

7,151

65,416



8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

Other segment information
Amounts included in the measure
of segment profit or loss or
segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Research and development costs

R 5 8 RH
BEREIEET e

g
DHEERTANEE

FRPEENE

nE  BER
REFE

wNE  BERRE
RHRERR

BANHESUREH

TN

Manufacture
and sale of
advanced
steel flow
control
products

RERHE
Rk
EREm
RMB'000

ARETT

3,692
12,581
29,131

234
14,007

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

BESE (&)
THEEREE (B)

BHE-_Z2—=F+-"A=+—81Lt

FE (&)
Manufacture
and sale
of paper
converting
equipment
and other
relating
equipment Others  Consolidated
HiERHE
RERMIR
REAM,
R Hith wa
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AR
= = 3,592
- 9 12,590
= - 29,131
= - 234
= - 14,007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

8.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)
Information about geographical areas

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue by geographical market:

The PRC rh

(country of domicile) (FREHER)
Europe BN
Asia (other than the PRC) ol ChefEdE)

Over 60% of the Group’s non-current assets are located in
the PRC.

Information about major customers

Revenue from a customer generated from the manufacture
and sale of advanced steel flow control products
amounting to RMB28,529,000 (2013: RMB24,565,000)
individually represents more than 10% of the Group’s
revenue.

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

8.

BEom (&)
ih = E R

TREHASBE RN RTIHE D8
WADHT

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBETT

204,163 160,489
32,733 25,941
4,020 6
240,916 186,436

REEEBO0%Z M EEMN
] o

IREFEHR

kB E R E = i KR
mAB—BEPZHRAEARY
28,529,000 (ZE —=4F: AR
#524,565,0007T) * Bk A5 B 48 UKL
AHiB10% °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9. TAXATION

Current tax: BVERR A :
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R ESH

(Over) underprovision in prior years
BiET T
Deferred tax: (note 27)

AEE

Current year

Provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax was made
based on the estimated taxable profits calculated in
accordance with the relevant income tax laws and
regulations applicable to the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards.

On 6 August 2012, one of the PRC subsidiaries obtained a
Hi-tech certificate which is valid for three years. According
to GuoShuiHan [2009] No.203, entities qualifying for the
Hi-tech status could enjoy a PRC Enterprise Income Tax
preferential treatment starting from the year of obtaining
the Hi-tech certificate. As a result, this PRC subsidiary
was subject to a PRC Enterprise Income Tax of 15% for
three years commencing from 2012.

BRI ¢ (FFE27)

9.

BEFE (BREE)

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

3R]

2013

—g-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBTIT
(282) 36
(7,592) 1
(7,874) 36

B RSB RE TR E
ARta N GZERR AR E P EHE
RAZBRAABBIERERAE) 1F
4o

RE(CFBEEERESHRATEE
FIEBOE]D) REXMERAERGK
Bl FERBARMNRER —FF
NF—B—Bi#£%R25% °

R-ZB——F\ARB ' —RK*HH
MBARACESSHIRMEXRE
£ BRH=F - RIFEH K[2009]
2035 NARHRMEEER
VERAESRMRMEEXEEE
FRAUZZPECEMSHESRR
B Bt ZTBEMNBARE —F
——FRFA=ZFFEXI5%TELE
PSS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE—

Z-ME+-A=+—HILFE

TAXATION (continued)

According to a joint circular of the Ministry of Finance
and State Administration of Taxation — Cai Shui 2008
No. 1, dividend distributed out of the profits of PRC
entities generated after 1 January 2008 are subject to
PRC Enterprise Income Tax which is withheld by the
PRC entity at 5% of the dividend distributed. During the
year ended 31 December 2014, deferred tax income of
RMB7,334,000 (2013: nil) in respect of the undistributed
earnings of the Company’s PRC subsidiary has been

MR (#])

R 95 i B BB & B KBRS 4R R B
& % i #0380 (BF 1200858 15E X
#) R=BENF-—A—B2z2®&i
B R R A P DR 2 BB A
MPBIERMER - ]IEEIuZEPIE
BIRE DR EME%TEM - B E

Z-MFE+—A=+—HIFE"
BERAARRNPEMBRRZRD
KBMZBELERBARABSARE

reversed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss 7,334,000 (ZZE—=F: &) -
and other comprehensive income. Rt Bz REMmEmEmkER
hEEm -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of RMB134,919,000 (2013: RMB20,668,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of such unused tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
All the unrecognised tax losses will expire before 2019.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

REREAR  AEEHEEARFAHH
TE 18 A R#134,919,0007T (==
— =4 : AR¥20,668,0007T) & A
BB &% M TS o R A TR
BT ML ERZ SRS
HREGEEREEHREEE - T8
RERREBEBER - —hLFZ
AT fE M ©

FARBXHEGABEE AR
RS R 2 R AT B R SRR T

2014 2013
—E—MmF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREET T
Loss before taxation BrEL RSB (181,576) (56,740)
Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income Tax LB TSR E25%
rate of 25% FTE IR (45,394) (14,185)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TTTD%F&E%SEZ
for tax purpose s 2 21,611 9,018
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERMBAZ
tax purpose Mg 2 (4,779) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIBEIE 2 TRIGT 2 28,562 5,167
Reversal of withholding tax on HADIREF 2
undistributed earnings A B (7,334) i
(Over)underprovision BAEFE (BEEHE)
in prior years BETE (282) 36
Others Hih (258) T
Taxation (credit) charge for the year FRFHIE (Fe) Tl (7,874) 36

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation has been arrived
at after charging (crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration
Allowance for inventories

(included in cost of sales)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Cost of inventories recognised

as an expense
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment
Minimum lease payments

in respect of office premises
Minimum lease payments

in respect of an office equipment
Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Net exchange loss
Research and development costs

(included in other expenses)

Staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments)
— Salaries and other benefits
— Retirement benefit
scheme contributions
— Share-based payments (included in
administrative expenses)

Less: Staff costs included in research
and development costs

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

10. RRRAIEE

2013
—F-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
BREIRTE BB (FFA)
THEB BEN -
Z RN & 614 1,031
FERE
(BIASHERKA) 946 =
TR & R IE 8 352 234
Hofh A B B 5 919 =
HRRRAZ 2
FEKA 264,217 158,836
ME - BE &
HETE 12,345 12,590
EEBRAEYHEL
EEEFKIE 662 839
EERLERE 2
SEAERE 3 5
HEME - HEX
HiEEE 23 =
M H E518)F 58 1,931 253
T EE R AR
(PIAEMFE) 32,656 14,007
BIMA
(BEEZESH2)
— e RHEMBER 36,663 29,584
— RRERE B
1,441 1,189
— DARR (D B ERE 5K
(BIAFTHRAX) - 384
38,104 31,157
B ET AR A
B TRA (2,203) (853)
35,901 30,304
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

11. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1. EEREETHRARZEHE

EMOLUMENTS

ENKENTEEERERTHA
BZBMEmT

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors
and the Chief Executive, were as follows:

Retirement
Performance benefit
Salaries and related scheme  Share-based
allowances bonus contributions payments
HERHER  BOEHRY NRRE
FRRAM b4 (3! & ERfR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABRTT ABRTT ABRTT ABRTT ABRTT ABRTT
For the year ended BE_Z-METZR
31 December 2014; =t-ALEE:
Executive directors: H$78%:
Xu Yejun REE 380 125 - 5 - 510
Ho Yuk Hay (resigned on % (R=2-I&
28 October 2014) TAZTN\BRE) 158 - - - - 158
Zhao Ping (resigned on Y (RZZ-DE
22 October 2014) tA-t-BEf) 153 - - - - 153
Sin Kwok Wai, Ronald AEH (R-F-F
(appointed on TATREZD)
10 October 2014) 106 - - 3 - 109
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Chow Chi Wa AEE 189 - - - - 189
Yip Sum Yu (appointed on i (W-F-1F
10 November 2014) +-A1REZf) 16 - - - - 16
Independent non-executive BUNTES
directors;
Yao Enshu ks 95 - - - - 95
Toui Siu Hang, Steve (resigned ~ ##A1E (R-F—m#E
on 10 October 2014) +ATER#T) 78 - - - - 7
Wong Kwong Chi (resigned IH7 (R-E-mE
on 10 October 2014) TATHET) 73 - - - - 3
Li Yik Sang (appointed on 325 (RZ5-ME
10 October 2014) TATREER) 2 - = = = 2
Tong Yiu On (appointed on ERZ (W-F-I&
10 Qctober 2014) TATREZT) 2 - - - - 2
1,285 125 - 8 - 1,418

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)




11. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

For the year ended
31 December 2013:

Executive directors:
Xu Yejun
Zhang Lanyin (designated as
non-executive director on
24 June 2013 and resigned
as non-executive director
on 27 November 2013)

Gu Aoxing (resigned on
27 November 2013)

Ho Yuk Hay (appointed on
30 October 2013)

Zhao Ping (appointed on
30 October 2013)

Non-executive director:
(Gao Zhilong (resigned on
27 November 2013)
Chow Chi Wa (appointed on
27 November 2013)

Independent non-executive

directors:

Yao Enshu

Yang Fugiang (resigned on
27 November 2013)

Tsui Siu Hang, Steve

Wong Kwong Chi (appointed
on 27 November 2013)

BE-S-z£12R
Zt-BLEE:

#EE:

fREZ

RER (N-5-=%
NAZTRAERE
BFUTEER
R-E—=F
+-A=ttR
BEETES)
BT (W=3-=
T—AZTLREHD)
Tiam (A==
tA=1+REZE)
BE(R=3-=F
tH=+REZE)

FHnEE:

mEE (R-F-2f
T-AZTLARE)
BtE (R-F-2%
t-AZTLREEM)

BUINES

%
BE% (W=
—A=tLAEM)
lra
s (R=F-=F
—AZTtREZM)

i

2
.
_‘_
f~a
I#
_‘_

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

1. EERFEFRITHRARZHS

(#)
Retirement
Performance benefit
Salaries and related scheme  Share-based
Fees allowances bonus  contributions payments Total
BRAIAE RINEH WA
we  HekEk LIEAL FE [ VRS At
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE  ARETT  ARETr  ARETn  ARETR  ARETx
381 124 - 5 - 510
168 40 - - - 208
121 78 - - - 200
38 - - - - 38
38 - - - - 38
87 - - - - 87
18 - - - - 18
9% - - - - 9%
87 - - - - 87
9% - - - - 9%
9 - - - - 9
1,133 237 - 5 - 1,375
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

11.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Mr. Xu Yejun is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive. Mr. Xu
Yejun was resigned as the Chief Executive with effect from
January 2015.

Mr. Lu Yongchao was appointed as the Chief Executive of
the Company with effect from January 2015.

The performance related bonus is determined by the
performance of individuals.

None of the directors waived any emoluments for both
years.

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

1. EERFEFRITHRARZHS
(#)

BREELENRBARRITHRER -
EXBBERMEBEBIESITR
REBITRBMZEAZME © 1Rt
EB-ZE-AF-AREBETHR
AL o

EKBEERA_ZE-—HF—ARE
BRERNRBITHRARE -

HERIVEE A RBEEARR

B -

RzmEFE  SEEEHERN
EBE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

12. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 12. ER#M &£
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in rEEBRESESHFATEFR =%
the Group, three (2013: three) were directors and the ZE—=F:=R) BEARAEICE
Chief Executive of the Company whose emoluments ERFETHAE  HME2EREL
are included in the disclosures in note 11 above. The MEFIREEZE - B TRA (ZF
emoluments of the remaining two (2013: two) individuals —=ZF WB) ALZMEW0T

were as follows:

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®WTT ARETIT

Salaries and allowances e MOERh 405 917
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R {KAEFI 5T 214 2% 5 16
Share-based payments LARR 15 B EREAT 3R = 384
410 1,317

Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZMENTUATHE
2013
—E—=F
Number of Number of
employee employee
EEAH BEEAZ
Up to HKD1,000,000 =% %1,000,00078 7T 2 1

HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 L&

1,500,000/%8 7T = 1
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B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

13.

14.

DIVIDENDS 13.

No dividend was paid or proposed by the Company during
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, nor has
any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period.

LOSS PER SHARE 14.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Loss B8

Loss for the year attributable to the TR EA K #E R
owners of the Company for the purpose M5 AN A FHEAS A
of basic and diluted loss per share B2 FEEE

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

Bz 2

ARARWERNSIERKNTEE
E-—NER_E—=F+"A=+
—HIEEEZRE - BERFHX
INEREZRNERKZE -

BRREIR
RRREEARIEGEERELRREE
BRI IA T 8IRETE

2013

—=F =
—=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT

(173,702) (56,776)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

14. LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 14. BERER ()
Number of Number of
shares shares
B8 H 4=
2014 2013
—Z—mE —F—=F
’000 000
TR TFA%
Number of shares 478 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary T EFRERK
shares for the purpose of basic and BSEEAERZ
diluted loss per share 38 A% N AE S 5 1,503,742 1,200,000
The calculation of diluted loss per share for each of the AEEHE—E—HF+_A=1—
two years ended 31 December 2014 had not taken into BIEMEFESF 2 SREEEE
consideration the assumed exercised of the Company’s W AREATERR A B ARITE
outstanding share options as it would reduce the loss per ZEEE REeBRESREER
share. Ao
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

COST
At 1 January 2013
Additions

At 31 December 2013

Additions

Acquired on acquisition of
subsidiaries

Disposals

At 31 December 2014

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2013

Provided for the year

Impairment loss recognised in
profit or loss

At 31 December 2013
Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposals

Impairment loss recognised in
profit or loss

At 31 December 2014

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2014

At 31 December 2013

Sinoref Holdings Limited

EMZERBARAE

A
RZE-=5-f-H
AE

R-E-=%+-A
=1-H

AE

KEREAAREA

th&

R=$-ME+2F
=+-H

NERHE
RZE—=F-f-A
ERiE
RERARRZ
BEEE

R=F—=F+-F
==
R
HEZH#
RERRERZ
BEEE

RZ§-mE+2R
Z+-8

BEE
R=$-ME+2F
=4-1

RZZ-=%+_A
=t-H

15. ¥ - BB Rk il

Furniture Plant,
and fixtures ~ machinery
Leasehold and office and Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
RERKER BE BER
BT HENRKE BOERRE 4 ] RE at
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETE ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
36,698 159 1,197 108,750 8,169 149,973
710 - 40 2,436 406 3,592
37,408 159 1,287 106,186 8,575 153,565
- - 2,850 6,328 - 9,678
21,060 - 452 968 229 28,709
- (159) (317) (625) (98) (1,099)
64,468 - 4,222 113,457 8,706 190,853
6,462 159 871 27,021 3,856 38,369
1,835 - 77 9,39 1,284 12,590
- - - 29,131 - 29,131
8,297 159 948 65,546 5,140 80,090
3,137 - 221 7,586 1,401 12,345
- (159) (285) (525) (18) (987)
- - - 24,269 - 24,269
11,434 - 884 96,876 6,523 115,717
53,034 - 3,338 16,581 2,183 75,136
29,111 - 289 40,640 3,435 73,475




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

As at 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s buildings
with a net carrying value of RMB25,977,000 (2013: nil)
were pledged to secure short-term bank borrowings.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 4.5% — 18%
Leasehold improvements 20% or over the lease term,
whichever is shorter
Furniture and fixtures and  18%
office equipment

Plant, machinery and 9%
equipment
Motor vehicles 18%

The buildings are situated on land in the PRC and are held
under medium term leases.

Impairment loss recognised in the current year

During the year, as a result of the continuous decline in
the performance of the Group, the Group carried out a
review of the recoverable amount of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment. The review led to the recognition
of an impairment loss of RMB24,269,000 (2013:
RMB29,131,000), which has been recognised in profit or
loss. The recoverable amounts of the relevant assets have
been determined on their value in use. The discount rate
in measuring the amounts of value in use was 16.50%.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

15. W% - BE R (&)

N-E—NE+-_A=+—0H " &
SEEERETREFEAARE
25,977,000 (ZE—=F: T) W
EF o UBBEHETEE -

Loz - BERREBEERERE
K& EREMGRSKEBERATI
FRAEREMGAIERFHFE
e

BF 4.5% — 18%

HEWMZERE 20% kIR T Ef
B E A%

HEAREER 18%

WAERE

BB - #es R 9%

B

B 18%

BFURPEAM - RiEHHELD
A o

RAFERZ AR ERR

FAN BRAEBEEEETE
REBEHHYE - BERRENT
WECREETTES -  BEEHRE
ROB B BB A R #24,269,0007T
(ZE—=%F: AR %29,131,000
TT) ' ZERIBERIBRAER © 18
BEEMNIWESEDRELFER
BEET sfECABRESERDY
BhIRE 516.50% ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

16.

122

GOODWILL

CARRYING VALUE FRMEE

At 1 January ®n—A—AH

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries UWEEM B A RIEAE
(note 33) (PI7E33)

At 31 December yr=F=7—E

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from acquisition of the Accura Group has been allocated
to the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) operating under
the segment “Manufacture and sale of paper converting
equipment and other relating equipment”. During the year
ended 31 December 2014, management of the Group
determines that there are no impairment of the CGU
containing goodwill.

The basis of the recoverable amount of the CGU and its
major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections covering a 5-year period, based on
financial budgets approved by the management and a
discount rate of 16.11% per annum. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated with 3% growth rate.
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such
estimation is based on the unit’s past performance and
management’s expectations of the market development.

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

16. m#

2013

—F-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABWTE  ARKTR
6,542 =
6,542 =

SR ERFETF - KiEAccurak E
EEXECHBEIEZEZEREE
MEMTREREMBBARE] 5
HTHEeESLSEM ([(ReELE
fi]) - RBE-_Z—mE+-_A=
+T—RLEFE AEEEEEEE
BEBENRESEEENTERE -

ReELBU s REEEIEE
REEFZHEABEMENT

ReEEBM 2 RESEDIRIE
FRAEBENEET - T8 KA
ERERBEMENTREE RITR
EREF16 1M AFHEARNIE &
REFRER - AFRZESRER
BI%HIERERME - FREMBEE
MEMNEEZRLEREEHRHEER
EMENRESARA S REZETHE
B ZERTDEREMNHBAER
BREEEHMSEETELR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HthEER T E

Technology Customer
know-how relationship Total
SHHEW ERRFE #ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TRT ARETT

COST BN
At 1 January 2013 and R-_ZE—=F—H—H
31 December 2013 E—T—=%F
=R ETplE - - =
Acquired on acquisition of A NI=PNGIERS PN
subsidiaries 2,236 10,733 12,969
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NE
+=-A=+—H 2,236 10,733 12,969

AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT  # §5 K (B

At 1 January 2013 and R-ZE—=F—H—H
31 December 2013 rE=—F—=%F

+=ZA=+—H = - g
Charge for the year FAYH 159 760 919
At 31 December 2014 R-_E—NE

+=-HA=+—H 159 760 919
CARRYING VALUES fREE
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NE

+=-A=+—H 2,077 9,973 12,050
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=

+=—A=+—A” - - _
The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such tiiBYEEREREEMAFEHY -
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis REEBREEDRUTHEZER
over the following periods: VRS
Technology know-how 10 years EH A T4
Customer relationship 10 years B BR T4
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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18.

124

DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF A
SUBSIDIARY

On 3 November 2014, the Company, as purchaser,
entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
(the “Agreement”) with Ms. Lam Wai Ha, an independent
third party, as vendor, to acquire 90% equity interest in
Time Credit Limited at a consideration of RMB110,250,000
(equivalent to HK$140,000,000). Time Credit Limited
is engaged in the money lending business in Hong
Kong. In the opinion of the Directors, the acquisition
will enable the Group to enter into the money lending
business and diversify the revenue stream of the Group.
RMB55,125,000 (equivalent to HK$70,000,000) of the
consideration has been settled by a cash deposit upon
signing of the Agreement. RMB29,138,000 (equivalent
to HK$37,000,000) of the consideration will be settled
in cash on the completion date and the remaining
RMB25,988,000 (equivalent to HK$33,000,000) of the
consideration will be settled by issuing of promissory
note by the Company in favour of Ms. Lam Wai Ha on
the completion date. Upon completion of the acquisition,
Time Credit Limited will become a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. As at the date of the issuance
of this report, the acquisition has not been completed and
is subject to fulfillment of certain terms and conditions.
Accordingly, the financial impact of the above transaction
to the Group is not disclosed. The details of the acquisition
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 3 November 2014.

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

18. IWMMBATZEMES

RZE-—NME+—HA=H'ARQ
Al(ERER) BBIE=HFMNE
Bt (ERER) IIL—HEEK
HEEmE ([HZE]) - #EAKE
RBEEHBRRA AWK E - K
8 & A R #110,250,0007T (18 &
#140,000,0007 7T) » K H 2 &
BERAFTNEBREREEY - &
ERE - WEFTESEHAEEMA
BRIREXESRAEANE R 2 W2k
B o AR ¥55125,0007T (# & R
70,000,000/ 7T) 2 RBEE R EFE]
ZHBEURSRESEN - AR
29,138,0007T (8 % $ 37,000,000
Br) cREBRTKBEBHURE
B mes T AR%25988,0007
(#8 = $33,000,000/8 7T) Z X &
AR BRTK B EAITUNE
BEXTRAZEAZELEREN -
REBEETKE  KAEERR
REEKBARARZIEZEHBR
Al RTIBAREAE  WEEE
MARTTAK - BREE TR RIGHE
BEFAIEE - At - WEKELE
MRXGHAEBEEZVBHELE -
FRAWBEEE ZFBEERARRH
HAEZZE—NFE+—A=ZBHQ
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. FAfEBERIA
The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent leasehold AREBEBNEERIBRAR PRI
land in the PRC under medium term lease and are BERBABANFECHEE T - &
amortised to consolidated statement of profit or loss and AHSOFMHERESABaRE
other comprehensive income over the lease term of 50 EER RPN -
years.

2014 2013

—ZE—mE —F—=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREETT

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MIEMSOMET :

Non-current asset FERBEE 15,560 9,628

Current asset mENE E 391 235
15,951 9,863

As at 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s leasehold R-B-—mOE+-_A=+—H" &

land with a net carrying value of RMB6,323,000 (2013: nil) SECERETHREFEAARY

was pledged to secure short-term bank borrowings. 6,323,000 (ZT—=%F: T) &

HETH - URSEHRITESE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

20. INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Less: Allowance for inventories

@ Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMERERATF

FRFF#
R
SUPK

W R

20. #8

2013
==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T
13,770 9,329
20,995 8,673
6,081 4,937
40,846 22,939
(946) -
39,900 22,939




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The credit period granted by the Group to certain
customers is within 180 days (2013: 180 days), while
payment from other customers are due immediately when
goods are delivered. The following is an aged analysis
of trade receivables presented based on the goods
delivery date at the end of the reporting period, which
approximated the respective revenue recognition dates:

0 - 30 days 0Z230H
31 - 60 days 31£260H
61 — 90 days 61290H
91 — 120 days 91£120H

121 — 180 days 121£180H
181 days to within 1 year 181HZE1E AR
Over 1 year 1F A E

At 31 December 2014, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balances are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB238,030,000 (2013: RMB155,643,000),
which are past due as at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

1. BHEKRIA

AEBERETEPER ZEEH
A180H (Z =& — =4 : 180H) I
W mE MRS AR EE AL
BAR e U TARBARARREER
@A A A (B g MW ARERR B EA
i) 2% 28 5 EWKRIARER 5
AT

2013

—T—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREET T
23,189 18,802
22,561 16,124
25,486 19,021
26,417 16,301
36,587 24,106
89,811 66,747
33,414 11,264
257,465 172,365

R-ZE—NWE+—_A=+—H " &
EEBHREWFIBEKRBERR
42 {8 & A R#238,030,0007T (==&
— =% : AR#¥155,643,0007T) Z
FEWEIR - HRERREIRE &
REBWARIEHBEBERE - K
& E I B UL E AT A AR

[}
ao °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. WHBBRHRIRF (8&)
Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not B R RE B S RKGIE 2
impaired: BRECAAT -
2013
—E—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARETTT

0 - 30 days 0%&30H 20,645 14,631
31 - 60 days 31260H 17,530 12,829
61 — 90 days 61%290H 20,532 14,617
91 - 120 days 912120H 23,782 13,732
121 — 180 days 121£180H 32,316 21,823
181 days to with 1 year 180H E1F LA 89,811 66,747
Over 1 year 1AL 33,414 11,264
238,030 155,643
The Group has not provided for certain trade receivables AEEIWEFE T E 8 8 RBE
which are past due but not impaired because the directors ZBSEWHBIELEE  TER
of the Company consider that those receivables are RAREFRBEER 2 RN HRE
recoverable based on the good payment record of the BRREZEEFPHNRARZERR
customers and long established trading history with these Rk E FEWGRIAR] T UK E] o AN [E
customers. The Group does not hold any collateral over Il T e S S R IR daleral

these balances.

@ Sinoref Holdings Limited
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:

At beginning of the year F7]

Impairment loss recognised in respect B P B IR R A
of trade receivables RIEBE

At end of the year R

Allowance on doubtful debts of RMB30,623,000 (2013:
nil) recognised during the year ended 31 December 2014
is based on estimated irrecoverable amounts by reference
to the creditability of individual customers, past default
experience, subsequent settlement and payment history of
the customers. Full provision has been made for individual
trade receivables aged over one year with no subsequent
settlement as historical evidence shows that such
receivables are generally not recoverable, or individual
trade receivables which has been in severe financial
difficulties.

At 31 December 2014, included in the trade
receivables is RMB12,561,000 (2013: RMB6,537,000)
and RMB3,670,000 (2013: RMB883,000) that was
denominated in EUR and USD, respectively. All the
remaining trade receivables are denominated in RMB.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

1. RABURIT (&)

RIERBZ 2
2014 2013
—F—mF e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
30,623 -
30,623 -

REBEE-_T—NF+_A=+—
HEFEERNREREARK
30,623,000 (ZF—=%: &) Jy
ERE2Z/ABTFENER - BF
MBEENTE  ERLEERIH
FEE G TR R E £ %8 - BBl
BHEGEERERBB —FHOESR
B SRWHIE (AAELEERRBZ
ZRBERR— BT AIKRE) B ER
B B R R EE Y (B B & 5 e UK TR
B 2 E B -

R-ZE—WNE+-—_A=+—H0 &
S W RIERIED B ABT R ETT
A E 2 3k E A R #12,561,0007T
—E—=%: AK%6,537,0007T)
X A B #3,670,0007t (Z & — =
F: AR%883,0007T) - HEAFTA
2B 5 EWRIBAAREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

22. BILLS RECEIVABLES 22,

The aged analysis of bills receivables presented based on
the goods delivery date at the end of the reporting period
are analysed as follows:

REHRPR  REEMIMNTBEHZ
2 EWEBRE DN AOT

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®WTT ARETIT

0 - 90 days 0£90H 2,513 -
91 — 120 days 91£120H = =
121 — 180 days 1212 180H 1,204 408
Over 180 days 1808 M 38,991 32,446

42,708 32,854

At 31 December 2014, the carrying value of bills
receivables include bills endorsed to suppliers on a
full recourse basis that are not yet due amounting to
RMB23,814,000 (2013: RMB17,822,000). As the Group
has not transferred the significant risks and rewards
relating to these bills receivables, it continues to recognise
the full carrying amount of the bills receivables as assets
in the consolidated financial statements. The associated
trade payables secured over the bills endorsed to the
suppliers which were not yet due at the end of the
reporting period are recognised as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

RZE-—NME+-_A=+—H " &
KEENRAERREEEHARE
ERHREFEESEHEMHEARIER
B & % IE A R %23,814,0007T (=
T—=%: AK#%¥17,822,0007T) °
BHRASERREEEAZERER
ZEMNEREKRIER  HAEE
BENGEM B RERPERERE
BRNEHSEABEREE - MEER
EEMNEE (RBERERHATE)
WERZFHEEZENRBRES
MR ERPEERBRBAE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22. BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 22.
Bills receivables endorsed to HEEBREEAIEER
suppliers with full recourse: HEMNEKREE :
Carrying amount of transferred assets BEREEREE

Carrying amount of associated liabilities A B & 2 REE

Net position R R

All the bills receivables are denominated in RMB.

The maturity dates of endorsed bills were less than six
months from the end of the reporting period.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

B R ()

2013
—T—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT

23,814 17,822
(23,814) (17,822)

PIAERUREDAAREHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

BHE

23.

24.

132

—E-WFETZA=T—HILEFE

BANK BALANCES AND CASH/RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS

At 31 December 2014, bank balances carried interest
at an average interest rate of 0.35% (2013: 0.35%) per
annum.

Restricted bank deposits represents deposits of
RMB1,869,000 (2013: nil) which have been pledged to
banks to secure bills payables. The pledged deposits are
not available for use in the Group’s daily operation.

At 31 December 2014, included in the bank balances
and cash is RMB32,196,000 (2013: RMB12,589,000)
that was denominated in HKD and RMB270,000 (2013:
RMB82,000) that was denominated in USD. All the
remaining bank balances and cash are denominated in
RMB.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills
payables presented based on the goods receipt date at
the end of the reporting period.

0 — 30 days 0£30H

31 - 60 days 31£260H
61 — 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H M

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

23.

24.

BITRBREAS SRS
TER

R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—H "
THBRIBZFEHEFE0.35% (ZF—
=% :0.35%) 5t 8 °

SZRFIBITFERIIIEEER TR
TUBRGSEREENGTERARK
1,869,0007C (= T — = 4F : %) o
EEBERTAIEASERATEE
TEHRER o

NRZE—NME+=—_A=+—H ' =t
ARITEBEESHNEBARK
32,196,000 (ZZE—=F: AR
#12 589,0007T) A TTEHE K A
R#270,000c (Z&E—=F : AR
#82,0007T) MAETLEHE © FT A &
TERITEBR RIS AARBEHE -

RAEMAREREMRE
AT R E 583 3OR KB R R

HHRMARBREERERBHZSZ
BRER AT ©

2013

—T—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000
UN: & ARBTT
19,117 11,198
7,166 6,160
6,636 2,337
13,423 9,017
46,342 28,712




24,

25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

The credit period granted by the suppliers to the Group is
within 30 days.

At 31 December 2014, included in the trade payables was
RMB23,814,000 (2013: RMB17,822,000) secured over
bills receivables endorsed to suppliers that were not yet
due for payment.

The carrying amounts of the trade payables at the end of
the reporting period are denominated in RMB.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables H e3R8
Receipt in advance TEUGRIE
Payables for acquisition of property, W2  BRE &
plant and equipment FETFRIE

Accrued sales commission EEHiHE e
Accrued professional fees ERTEEER
Accrued staff costs FERT B TR
Other tax payables Hh fERT R IR

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

24. RHEFHRIEA (1)

HEFRASER L ZEEHR30
W o

RZE—NFE+=ZHA=+—8"
FABSENRENEYBE
MHEIEENERERE (MK
IERA) WMEREXRBARYK
23,814,000 (ZZT—=F: AR
#17,822,0007T) °

REBHPR  BZRNREZRR
EAAREE -

25. RfafEftRIARE TR

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETIT

1,028 996
1,685 =
Rz

1,337 =

13,547 11,680

614 976

2,627 2,035

2,016 1,769

22,854 17,456
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

26. BANK BORROWING

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
obtained a new bank loan amounting to RMB20,000,000
(2013: nil). The loan carries a fixed interest at 6.9% per
annum and is repayable within one year from the end of

the reporting period.

The bank borrowing is secured by the Group’s
leasehold land and building with a net carrying value of
RMB6,323,000 and RMB25,977,000 respectively at the

end of the reporting period.

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

At 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013

Arising on acquisition
Credit for the year (note 9)

At 31 December 2014

134 Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMZRER DA

26. SHITHHE

A

REZE—=

Z—NME+-_A=+—H
IEEE  AEEESHRITERA
K 20,000,000 (= & — = F :
/) Z B

IR B £ F I £6.9%5T

B AR R —EREE -

RERER - RITEEDUREE
BRmEFED Bl A A R%B6,323,0007C
& AR #25 977,000t 2 FAE + i

RABFEHEAR

27. BERAAR

Undistributed
earnings of
the PRC  Revaluation
subsidiary of assets Total
PR E P R 2 )
ZRARET BEEWEE it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTFT ARBTT
RZE—=4—R—Ak
“T—=F+-A=+—H 18,720 - 13,720
Wi E A& - 4,085 4,085
EREE (MiF9) (7,334) (258) (7,592)
RZE-mE+=A=1+—8 6,386 3,827 10,213
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28. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013,
1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013
and 1 January 2014

Issue of shares on 20 January 2014 (note a)

Exercise of share options (note b)
Issue of shares on 16 April 2014 (note ¢)

Issue of shares on 7 July 2014 (note d)

Repurchase of ordinary shares (note €)

At 31 December 2014

Shown in the consolidated
financial statements
At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2014

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

28. &
Number of
shares at
HK$0.10
per share Amount
W|EXE{EO.10
BTZRnh#E it ]
'000 HK$'000
Tk FET
EE
R=ZT—=F—A—H-
“T—=f+=ZRA=+—H"
“T-NFE-A—HK
ZE-ME+ZA=1+—H 3,000,000 300,000
BRTRME :
R-—Z—=F—Ff—8"
—E-—=F+-fA=+-BF
—Z-MFE—-F—H 1,200,000 120,000
RZZ-—NFEF—A=+H
BITRG (fista) 200,000 20,000
TR RE (fiso) 2,400 240
RZZ—MEMEA+<H
BITRG (fFc) 92,052 9,205
RZE—NFE+A+H
27l (FiEEd) 110,000 11,000
BELER (fiite) (38,224) (3,822)
RZZ—NE+=A=1+—H 1,566,228 156,623
HAMBERRMT
RZE—=5+=A=+—H RMB’000 equivalent
ARBTTEE 104,201
RZZE-—NE+=A=+—H RMB’000 equivalent
AR%TTEME 133,169
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NF+-A=+—HLFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

136

Notes:

(a)

On 20 January 2014, pursuant to the placing and
subscription agreement dated 10 January 2014,
200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were allotted
and issued at the price of HK$0.38 per share.

On 21 January 2014, 2,400,000 shares of HK$0.10 each
were issued at HK$0.476 per share upon exercise of share
options under the share option scheme.

On 16 April 2014, 92,052,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each were allotted and issued at HK$0.59 per share upon
the acquisition of Accura Group as stated in note 33.

On 7 July 2014, pursuant to the placing and subscription
agreement dated 25 June 2014, 110,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each were allotted and issued at the
price of HK$0.57 per share.

On 23 October 2014, 38,224,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each were repurchased and cancelled at the
average price of HK$0.50 per share.

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

28. k&
Hizt -

(a)

(#)

R=F—WF—A=+H  REAB
HE-Z—NF—A+BEZEER
R - RER0.38BILZ B
fid 2% X %£77200,000,0000% & A H
E0.10B L2 Lk -

R=F—WF—A=+—8 " RE&
BT EIfTEERER - BER
0.4767% JT # 172,400,000/% & A%
FEE0.10B T2’ -

R=ZFT—MEMA+ 8" K
BEAccurask B (20 B sE33FT )
% 1% 8 1R0.598 JT i 3 K B 1T
92,052,0000% & % E f50.107% 7T
ZERE -

R=ZT—WE+A+A  RIEAH
ATE—NEXA-tRBZEE
RRERZ - EER0.57TETZE
1 2 2% & % 77110,000,0004% & A%
FEEC 0B L Lk

R_Z—NE+A=-_+=8  &&
A0.507 7T 2 I EE FE 0 K ot i
38,224,0000% & A% E f80.107% 7T
2B o
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”),
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 7 June
2010 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors and eligible employees, and will expire on 6
June 2020. Under the Scheme, the board of directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors (excluding non-executive directors) of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company.

At 31 December 2014, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Scheme was nil (2013: 8,000,000), representing
nil (2013: 0.67%) of the shares of the Company in issue
at that date. The total number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued
and to be issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to any individual in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 20 days from the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options
may be exercised at any time from 1 year from the date
of grant of the share option to the 10th anniversary of
the date of grant. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company, and will not be less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant, (i) the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s share.

29.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

LI BERARRS

RABRBER-_ZE—TF X ALA
iR RFRT AR B ([3%
iEll TEZEMERESFKEAE
REBSRMER  M&tEHR=
Z_TEXANBER - RIBEZF
g ARAEZEARNAERESR
(BREARFREMBRARNES -
TEBEFNTES) ROBRE - U
RIBARBAD

RZE—NFEF+=ZA=+—8" 1R
Bzt a8l BT i M AR ITE 2 BB
ERTSRZBHEE AR (ZF—
= :8,000,0000%) + HERAEKA
AIRNZBEZETRH 20% (ZF—
=F:067%) c EARKEARRNARE
ERBERBRT BEBZTERL
R RE P R 2 IR B BT 1B
BARBRERKEEEZEITRNDZ
10% ° TE AR LR R R IR R F St
BRT A EA TR ERN—F
NERRAIERZEREMPRZ
BEREITREFRITROEKE - 57
78 38 2N A & B AR B A 2 B2 1T AR (D
Z1% °

EREREATERE DL B BT
0B AT HBRBRES 1B
TC o B EEARAE o AR T NI
HRERER PR —FEEREA
HiEstm BT E B L EMEBTT
- TEEBHARRESETE B
MERA T E&REE : (VAAAREN
BREBHZKTE: (AR ARG
REERLAPIIAEEXAZFE
HUWTHE : Ki)ARRRGDEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

138

(continued)

Date of grant

RHAK

22 November 2010
S R

22 November 2010
ZE-TE+-AZfZR

22 November 2010
S R

21 September 2011
ZE——FAAZTER

27 September 2011
ZZ—FAAZTER

27 September 2011
Z2-—FARZTHA

Vesting
period

22 November 2010 to
21 November 2011
“Z-F5t-fA-fZHZ
ZE——Ft-A=1-H

22 November 2010 to
21 November 2012
Z5-TF+-A-TZRZ
ZF-Z§+-fA=t-R

22 November 2010 to
21 November 2013
ZE-FE+-RCfZRE
“E-=Et-At-H

21 September 2011 to
26 September 2012
E—FAACTERZ
ZZ-CEAACTAR

27 September 2011 to
26 September 2013
“T—FNAZTLRZ
“3-ZERAZTAR

27 September 2011 to
26 September 2014
ZB2—FnAzTERZ
Z5-MERAZTAR

Exercisable at 31 December 2014
IN=F-IF+-A=t-RBff

Weighted average exercise price

MEHIEE

Sinoref Holdings Limited

EMZERBARAE

Exercisable
period

fHEM

22 November 2011 to
21 November 2020
A
ZF-FF+-AZ1-A

22 November 2012 to
21 November 2020
e g g
ZETF+-A=1-R

22 November 2013 to
21 November 2020

e St R g o
“E-RET-A-1-H

27 September 2012 to
26 September 2021
ZE-CEAACTERE
ZE-FARZTAA

27 September 2013 to
26 September 2021
“E-ZENAZTAZ
ZZZ-FAAZHAR

27 September 2014 to
26 September 2021
ZE-MEAAZTEAR
ZZ-EAAZTAR

29. LI BERFMTRIS (1)

Exercise
price

fiEfR

HKS$1.408
1.408% T

HK$1.408
1.408%7C

HK$1.408
140887

HK$0.476
0.476%T

HK$0.476
0.476%T

HKS0.476
047678

Number of share options
fEREBE
Balance at
1.1.2013,  Exercised Lapsed Balance
31.12.2013 and during during at
1.1.2014 the year the year 31.12.2014
R2%-=
-B-8
-g-=
+ZA=+-AR RZS-ME
Z3-mf +=RZ+-8
-R-AZ&R  REARTE  RERRH &R
1,200,000 - (1,200,000) -
1,200,000 - (1,200,000) -
1,600,000 - (1,600,000) -
1,200,000 (1,200,000) - -
1,200,000 (1,200,000) - -
1,600,000 - (1,600,000) -
8,000,000 (2,400,000  (5,600,000) -



29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, 2,400,000
share options granted to the grantees were exercised and
the share options reserve of approximately RMB277,000
was recognised in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. The remaining 5,600,000 share options were
lapsed and the share options reserve of approximately
RMB2,253,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

OPERATING LEASES

At 31 December 2014, the Group had commitment for
minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year —F R
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FEFERF
(BEEEMSE)

The commitments represent rentals payable by the Group
for its office in Hong Kong and an office equipment with
terms of up to five years.

Monthly rental was fixed and recognised over the terms of
the lease on a straight-line basis.

29.

30.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

LI B ERARRS ()

BHE-_Z-—NF+=-A=+—H1t
FE - B TEKAB2,400,00017
IREEEITE  MEBREREDA
R 277,000 JY R 4R & HE 2= 8

KR o #2 T #5,600,00017 B A%
BEXY MEREREBEHARK
2,253,000 IR bR G = Z B R A

EEHR

R-ZE—MWE+—_A=+—H &
EERETURBECEREGUT
REBEEMRZEE  HBHEBR
I

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT

52 497
- 4
52 501

REREEAKERENSAFL
EEMAERMAERBENZHE
@ o

BAES IR EPAREREERE
ERHER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE—

31.

32.

140

Z-ME+-A=+—HILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying Hong Kong
employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Mandatory benefits are provided under the MPF
Scheme. The Group contributes the lower of 5% of the
relevant payroll costs and HK$1,250 per employee to the
MPF Scheme.

Employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the
state-sponsored pension schemes operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the state-sponsored pension schemes is to
make the required contributions.

The total contribution to the retirement benefit schemes
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income is RMB1,441,000 (2013:
RMB1,189,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into the following related party
transaction:

Name of related company

MELF &R

Relationship
[

Anxin China Holdings Limited
PR TERAR AT BER

Related company (Note)

a] (FfEE)

Note: The Ultimate Beneficial Owner has directorship or direct
beneficial and controlling interests in this related company.

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

31.

32.

Nature of transaction

XHER

Rental expenses

kA

iR fhinE 1 &2

AEESMBEAERBARER

BRAMEATRESE (BB
gll) WSz BENREAKEE

MWEEDHER  FRNXFEAE
HlzEe - mHlERFRERES
ArElRE - ARERBUEELRS
B H £5%31,2508 TH 2 BEE
SR B At IR -

FEE AR ZEED 2% ER
EBsRARENRAKSHE - %
EWBARIAREEHFZXEA D
Lo RR RS 5T 81K - Rt IERE A
BNES AEERILEERED
BREEE 2 HE—FRBEIEHRE
fHK o

Bt ARG ERkEMmEEKER
ZRARBRGEBERAARYE
1,441,000c (ZE—=F : AR¥
1,189,0007T) °

WES X5

AEBERIVATHERRS ¢

RMB’000
AR®FT

RMB’000
ARBTT

158,000 =

S ﬁﬁ)\ﬁ’\éiﬁﬁLAﬂﬁ*
(N ZAE N RIS B
$ H o

E%3
ﬁ&

‘ﬂﬂ¢} H—\ mlﬂl

“ﬁ ><¥ E‘\:



32.

33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management for both years was as follows:

Short-term benefits 55 Hit@ A
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R {R4E FIET 214 2%
Share-based payments AR A A E R 5 51

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 7 March 2014, the Company, as purchaser, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Acquisition
Agreement”) with an independent third party, Rainbow
Phoenix Holdings Limited, as vendor, to acquire 100%
equity interest in Accurate Trade International Limited,
an investment holding company whose subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of paper
converting equipment and other relating equipment, at an
aggregate consideration of approximately RMB55,000,000
(valued using share price of HK$0.62 per share, being
the share price of the Company as at the date of entering
into the agreement), subject to profit guarantee and
adjustments on consideration as stated below. The
acquisition has been completed on 16 April 2014. The
purpose of the acquisition is to broaden revenue base
and it is the Group’s strategy to review from time to time
potential business opportunity and investment to enhance
the shareholders’ value.

32.

33.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

MEHXH ()

FTEEEASFHMH

EEZNHEMTIZEEEKERMIE
FEZHBNT -

2014 2013

—E—QlE —F—=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREETT

2,491 2,979
52 58

- 384
2,543 3,421

EENTETHRABZME A%
MWEEE2EMARELRTSBES
MEE °

W AP B 2 B

R—_ZE—WE=ZALH ' XQF
({EBE H) E¥ 5 = FRainbow
Phoenix Holdings Limited ({E&%E
)R EEmE ((WERZE]) K
®# KB LN A R ¥55,000,0007T
(FASK0.62B T2 IE - BIAR
ARG B E B 2 REETHE)
I B&Accurate Trade International
Limited (— KRB ZER AT - HH
BARFENFRERHE KRN
THRERAMBERE) 2RE -
M 52 0m ) AR 78 AT AR BR 37 AT 36 T STFr
MREETHAE - ZWEER T
—MMEMA+ANBEEK - WHEEE
AEAEEWRARE  BAREE®
KA TR ELHERIEE
LARRFIGREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

Consideration transferred

Consideration shares issued at fair value (Note)

Note: Based on the Acquisition Agreement dated 7 March 2014, MizE -

33. BB LR (&)

BR2RE

BAVEFEZESBITRERD (&)

the purchase consideration will be satisfied by the issuance
of shares in two tranches (the “Consideration Shares”) in

the following manner:

(i) The first tranche of Consideration Shares, being
92,052,000 Consideration Shares (the “Tranche A
Consideration Shares”), was allotted and issued on

the completion date; and

(i) The second tranche of Consideration Shares,
initially being 20,456,000 Consideration Shares (the
“Tranche B Consideration Shares”), subject to the
profit guarantee of the Accura Group of not less than
RMB10,000,000 for the year ending 31 December

2014.

In case that the profit guarantee stated in above
point (i) could not be met, the number of Tranche
B Consideration Shares to be issued shall be the

following:

(Actual profit of the Accura Group/Profit guarantee) x
the initial number of Tranche B Consideration Shares
and rounded down to the nearest board lot of the

Company at the relevant time.

142 Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMZRER DA

RMB’000
ARETT

43,139

REEMAE-ZT-—NF=AtH
ZWE - BERESEA
IHAETRARS ( [HRER
] ) B

(i)

(i

F-HRKEBRNOD B
92,052,0000% £ 18 A% 17
(TE—#RERMDD RN
SER HHIBC 3 BT T 0 K

F_HRERG V¥
£20,456,0000% K & A%
B ((EZHRERGBD -
H ZAccurats B R B =
—T—mME+=—A=1+—
AEFERTLPRARE
10,000,0007T Z @ H) £R &
R °

fid L 2t 55 (ii) i P73t 2 )k )
RAEREZR A8 T T
ZE_HRER D 28 E
HRHRAT AR

(Accurats B 2 & B &
M EFRE) x5B = HR
BRHDZIBEE - R
HAREEOERAZRR

oo 2 oo

RO BFEBEEN -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
Consideration transferred (continued)

As at the acquisition date, the Directors were of the
opinion that the profit guarantee would be met and
that 20,456,000 shares would be issuable under the
contingent consideration share arrangement. However,
as at 31 December 2014, based on the latest result, the
profit guarantee has not been met and the Company will
not be required to issue new shares as the Tranche B
Consideration Shares.

The fair value of the 92,052,000 Tranche A Consideration
Shares was valued using share price of HK$0.59 per
share, being the share price of the Company on the date
of acquisition.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB767,000
have been excluded from the cost of the acquisition and
have been recognised directly as an expense in the year
and included in the “administrative expenses” line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

33. BB LR (&)

BR2NAE (&)

HEWEAY EERAFRE
15 Al E R - B20,456,0000% A% 17 #5
EREBEIARERD LHEMETT -
K> RZE—NFEF+_A=+—
B BESHES BIREEE
ERR  ARRBBABRITHRMDIE
RE_HRERD -

92,052,000/ —# R ERH 2 A
B Th R & I0.5978 7T 2 IR (8 (X
NaRWE B RE) (HE -

U BB AR RE R AN A R #5767,0007C 2 &
WK AR » WRFANEEER
RAX KT AGZEBREREMEE
Wk [TERAXET °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

Consideration transferred (continued)

The net assets of Accura Group at the date of acquisition

are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payment
Other intangible assets
Inventories

Trade receivables (Note)
Other receivables

Bank balances and cash
Trade payables

Other payables

Short-term bank borrowing
Deferred tax liabilities

The fair value of property, plant and equipment, prepaid
lease payment and other intangible assets at the date of
acquisition was valued by Assets Appraisals Limited, an
independent qualified valuer not connected to the Group,
by reference to market evidence of transaction price for
similar properties for building and prepaid lease payment,
depreciated replacement cost approach for remaining
categories of property, plant and equipment and the
income approach based on the expected future cash flows
generated from the related intangible assets.

144 Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMZRER DA

33. BB LR (&)

BR2AE (&)

AccuraR R B Rz EEFE

R
Fair value
AEE
RMB’000
ARBTIT
Yz BB RH 28,709
TS ERIE 6,440
Hitnfm & E 12,969
58 12,263
B S EWGRIE (FsE) 2,379
H fth E YR IE 5,524
IRITEBR RIS 220
B S e FRIE (4,024)
Lt FE S 5RIE (3,798)
RERTEE (20,000)
BELETHIBEE (4,085)
36,597

WE - BENRE BNHEEFRR
LREMETLEENKRERS 2 XF
B DHERNKEYEBEENET
BEMMGEMITH M EEENEE
RERARZSERUNERZER
MmEER (ARETRBENEER
H) FEEEXRANL (HRYE -
B MR RIS ER) REREH
BVEEELNBARARRASRE
ZWNFHEITEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. ItIRMIB AT ()
(continued)

Consideration transferred (continued) HECNE (B

Note: The trade receivables acquired with a fair value of Mzt - EEBCRUWEEHAYES
RMB2,379,000 at the date of acquisition had gross A R #2,379,0000t 2 B 5 fE
contractual amounts of RMB3,618,000. The best estimate WHEHEBANBBEARE
at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not 3,618,0007T ° M UHE B BRI TE
expected to be collected amounted to RMB1,239,000. AEENEZENREREZ K

EAHETAAR1,239,0007T °

RMB’000
ARBTT
Gooduwill arising on acquisition WEEEZEE
Consideration shares issued at fair value BRATEFEZEFHTRERD 43,139
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired & : B ESAIHRIEEEE L AT E (36,597)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEE 2 HE 6,542
Goodwill arose on the acquisition of the Accura Group BHRWEGSG REEETARAER
because the acquisition included the assembled workforce WABRRE—FIHISERE - Bt
and foreseeable revenue growth and further market WhEAccuraS B EEEE - %S &
development. These assets could not be separately EXTFEA #AEREEHER
recognised from goodwill because they do not meet the RAE - BRI E S MR o
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
RMB’000
AREET T
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition WEEE RS RAFRE
Bank balances and cash acquired Frikis 2 SR1TAER RIS 220
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

33.

146

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Accura
Group contributed approximately RMB19,004,000 to the
Group’s revenue and loss of approximately RMB5,077,000
to the Group’s results in aggregate for the period from the
date of acquisition to 31 December 2014,

If the acquisition of the Accura Group had been completed
on 1 January 2014, the Group’s revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2014 would have been approximately
RMB243,668,000 and loss for the year ended 31
December 2014 would have been RMB174,975,000. The
pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2014, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

33. BB LR (&)

BBEARERRZTE

RBEE-_Z—NM&E+=-_A=+—8
HEE BiEBREE —T—
F+_-_HA=+—HB 8™ ' Accura
EEEHAREBRATRAOAR
#19,004,0007T * BAAEB XA
RETHE L AR HES5,077,0007T °

fi W BEAccurale B —F — U F —
A—BEZRK A&EREE=Z
—mFE+—A=+—BLEFEZK
A4 B AR 243,668,0007T * 1M
HE-_T-—WF+=-_A=1+—81L
FEZBE/RBARE174,975,000
T HEAREMBKAZH  T—
ERABREWREEN - —MNF—
A—BRERZBERTAEBERER
BRARKEEB ZBIZ - TT#
AIER BEEE 2 TEA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. FRTFMBRAER
THE COMPANY

(@) Financial information of the statement of financial @@ AREHBEHRIAR 2T BHBER
position of the Company

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®WTT ARETIT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB RRZKE 174 174
Deposit paid for acquisition of WS B A2
a subsidiary B tie 55,125 -
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 7 10
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E e 300,387 220,856
355,693 221,040
Current assets mEEE
Prepayments TR IR 219 i
Bank balances RITAERR 40 4,583
259 4,583
Current liability mE B A
Other payables and accruals H{th e 7008 K BT & A (1,180) (1,622)
Net current (liabilities) assets nE (Aff) SERE (921) 2,961
Total assets less current liability FE#MERKTHAS 354,772 224,001
Capital and reserves BEXRFE
Share capital (note 28) AR (BI5E28) 133,169 104,201
Reserves EE] 221,603 119,800
Total equity EauE 354,772 224,001
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RIS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NF+-A=+—HLFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)  Movement of capital and reserves of the Company

At 1 January 2013

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

Recognition of equity settled
share-based payments

Release of share options reserve
upon cancellation of equity-settled
share options arrangement

At 31 December 2013

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

Issue of shares upon placing
(note 28(a) and note 28(d))

Exercise of share options
(note 28(h))

Lapse of share options

Issue of shares upon acquisition of
subsidiaries (note 28(c))

Repurchase of ordinary shares
(note 28(e))

At 31 December 2014

148 Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMZRER DA

RZZE-=%
—A—H

ERBBRER
2HRXEH

BARALE AR
BEBMT

RERAER
BRERHN
R RE

RZ%-=
+-A=1+-H
FREBRER
2ERTAE
REERETREA
(MiFx8(a) R
HizE28(d))
IR E
(Mi7£28(0))
BRER
RIEEH B A Rl
1R
(Pi7E28(c))
BN
(FE28(e)

RZIS-mE
tZAZ+-H

34. FLFMBLKAR ()

(b) ARTERREES
Share
Share Share options Retained

capital premium reserve profits Total
K& BRFEE WRERR FERH &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETE
104,201 80,442 32,184 11,972 228,799
- - - (5,182) (5,182)
- - 384 - 384
- - (30,038) 30,038 -
104,201 80,442 2,530 36,828 224,001
- - - (6,142) (6,142)
24,474 83,514 - - 107,988
189 990 (277) - 902
- - (2,253) 2,253 -
7,312 35,827 - - 43,139
(3,007) (12,109) - - (15,116)
133,169 188,664 - 32,939 354,772




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 35. ZATFMELTHE
COMPANY
Issued and Proportion of Proportion of
Place and date of fully paid ownership voting power
incorporation/ share capital/ interest held by held by
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital the Company the Company Principal activities
EfaL/ BRTRERRS/ NG ELEEEH
MELTER RILHER B ithEx ittt RARELA IERE
Accura Machinery & The PRC RMB26,639,440 100% - 100% = Manufacture and sale
Manufacturing (Taicang) 23 February 2004 AR #26,639,4407 of paper converting
Co., Ltd.* w7 equipment and other
TRk (K2) BRAT “EEME-A-1=R relating equipment
RERHERFNIR
BREMIEERE
Accurate Trade The British Virgin Islands USS1 100% = 100% = Investment holding
International Limited* 18 November 2013 %7 AR
ABRAES
“2-ZE+-AtNH
China Safety Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS$1 100% = 100% = Investment holding
7 April 2014 157 REfEk
B
“Z-PmEmALA
Eagle Pioneer Limited The British Virgin Islands US$ 100% = 100% = Investment holding
12 March 2014 B3 RERR
EERTES
“E-ME=AT=H
Great Select Global Limited* Hong Kong HKS1 100% - 100% = Investment holding
FRERERAR 18 November 2013 157 BB
(5
ZE-=E+-AT/R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

HELFER

Sinoref (BVI) Limited

Sinoref (Hong Kong) Limited
Zi (B%) BRAA

Sinoref Yixing*
EfER

# Wholly-foreign owned enterprise registered in the PRC.

(note 33).

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment
e/
RIMERAH

The British Virgin Islands
12 January 2010
ABRAES
“E-RE-f1CH

Hong Kong

17 February 2010
&k
“B-ZE-Ft+A

The PRC

20 July 2005

i
“5ERFtA-1H

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BRITRERRE/
B

USS2
VeI

HKS1
A7

RMB151,716,600
ARH#151,716, 60070

Proportion of

ownership

interest held by

the Company
FLEREN
it {1
2014

—3-mF

100%

100%

100%

Acquired through business combination on 16 April 2014

All of the subsidiaries are indirectly wholly owned by the

Company except for Sinoref (BVI) Limited, Accurate Trade

International Limited and Eagle Pioneer Limited which are

directly wholly owned by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of the year.

Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMHERBRD =)

100%

100%

100%

35. ANFMBLTER ()

Proportion of
voting power
held by
the Company Principal activities
rANGECET )
RRELA IERH
100% 100% Investment holding
REER
100% 100% Investment holding
RERR
100% 100% Manufacture and sale

of advanced steel flow
control products
BEREE AR

hEm
R B 2 MR E R R o

R-ZF—MFEEOA+RNEBEBER
& GtUEE (MHEE33) ©

FEMBRARAARRARERLE
% A& - HESinoref (BVI) Limited
Accurate Trade International
Limited % Eagle Pioneer Limited#
HARARIEEEZEHEA °

FRAMEMBRARETEMNERE

%o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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36. CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Capital expenditure contracted for
but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements in respect
acquisition of a subsidiary

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—HLEE

36. WHEkKiE

2014
—E—QmF

RMB’000
AR®TT
BMERTHEERARES
B mERPBERN
UREEH B A 7
M=K &R 55,125

2013
—T—=F

RMB’000
ARETIT

Annual Report 2014
TE-NEFR



Summary of Results, Assets and Liabilities

RiE EEREEHE

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
*KEBE+_A=+—HLEEZER
2010 2011 2012

—E-RF F—F Z®-=%

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTE ARBTE ARETT ARETT ARWTE

Turnover e 318,762 328,421 322,671 186,436 240,916
Profit (loss) and total RARHEA A

comprehensive income JEAE 5 A 7

(expense) for the year (1) RFER

attributable to owners 2EMA (%)

of the Company k] 130,056 92,011 72,479 (56,776) (173,702)

Earnings (loss) per share  GRRRF| (&)

(RMB) (ARH)
- Basic — HR 0.12 0.08 0.06 (0.05) (0.12)
- Diluted — 0.12 0.08 0.06 (0.05) (0.12)
Assets and liabilities of the Group at 31 December
FRERT_P=1t—HZEERAR

2010 2011 2012 2013

—F2F —EF——4% T —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETT AR®TRT
Total assets BERE 530,547 622,476 694,552 628,753 631,485
Less: Total liabilities B BfEEE (60,550) (77,631) (74,823) (65,416) (104,937)
Total net assets WEEFE 469,997 544,845 619,729 563,337 526,548

@ Sinoref Holdings Limited
EMERERATF
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